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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Good morning. I

          3  am Council Member Archie Spigner, Chair of the

          4  Committee on Housing and Building.  Today the

          5  Committee is a conducting a hearing on Intro. 802

          6  and Intro. No. 836, as well as seven Preconsidered

          7  Intros. Denying proposed Third Party Transfers in

          8  Manhattan.

          9                 Intro. No. 802 allows Housing

         10  Development Fund Companies, also known as HDFCs,

         11  ever low cost cooperatives and condominiums to put

         12  master meters and submeters in their previously

         13  directly metered buildings and abate the cost of

         14  this work under the submetered provision of J- 51.

         15                 Traditionally, energy conservation

         16  strategies were based on reducing total energy use.

         17  Now strategies that target reduction during peak

         18  hours are being used to reduce the use, the most

         19  expensive, dirtiest energy to produce.  Cutting down

         20  on its peak demand allows for fewer energy plants.

         21                 The proposal before us today

         22  encourages conservation by providing an incentive

         23  for systems that encourage the reduction of

         24  electricity during peak periods.  In order to create

         25  an incentive to reduce demand at peak periods,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  buildings need metering systems that are time

          3  sensitive and need to be billed according to when

          4  the electricity is used.  Only master/submetered

          5  buildings are in a position to encourage reduction

          6  based on differential pricing of electricity.

          7                 Today the Committee is also holding

          8  its first hearing on Intro. No. 836, which was

          9  introduced at the request of both the Staten Island

         10  Borough President's Office and the Queens Borough

         11  President's Office.  The bill proposes measures to

         12  ensure the adequate review of dwelling units prior

         13  to the placement of tenants pursuant to programs

         14  providing transitional or permanent housing.  The

         15  sponsors of this bill want to protect needy and

         16  disadvantaged New Yorkers from being placed in

         17  substandard housing. The Bill's sponsors also want

         18  to prevent the owners of such substandard housing

         19  from profiting from government sponsored housing

         20  programs.  With less substandard housing in use, it

         21  is hoped that our City's firefighters would respond

         22  to fewer fires involving dilapidated housing and

         23  that this in turn would diminish the risk of injury

         24  from such occurrences.

         25                 With regard to the Third Party
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          2  Transfers, we have added these items to today's

          3  agenda on short notice because these properties are

          4  automatically approved for transfer, unless the

          5  Council passes a law within 45 days from the point

          6  in which we receive notification from the Department

          7  of Finance.  On this round we have officially

          8  received notification on March 13th, so any

          9  disapproval must be passed at the stated Council

         10  meeting on April 25th.  All Council members have

         11  been advised that these items might become before

         12  the Committee today in an internal memo dated March

         13  14th.

         14                 As stated, there are seven

         15  Preconsidered Bills disapproving transfers that have

         16  been proposed by the Department of Housing

         17  Preservation and Development to Third Parties.  In

         18  order to age a disapproval of the bill, this

         19  Committee must act today. While I expect to vote

         20  these disapprovals this morning, I am advised by the

         21  sponsors of these bills that they sincerely hope to

         22  work out solutions to the outside issues prior to

         23  the Council meeting on the 25th, when these items

         24  will come before the full Council for a vote.

         25                 The disapproval action before us

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  today as a preserved the right of the Council so

          3  that we can be assured the Third Party Transfer will

          4  function in the way that we desire.  I have been

          5  advised, as well, investigating the proposed

          6  transfer of a property on 96th Street, our staff

          7  uncovered practices at the agency that make us

          8  uncomfortable.  There appeared to be a lot of

          9  discretion with regard to the Third Party, Susan

         10  Sheldon to receive property, and with regard to what

         11  properties that are chosen for the participation in

         12  the program.

         13                 We believe that HPD must come up with

         14  some verifiable way of documenting the decisions

         15  that they make so that we can better review their

         16  actions in the future.

         17                 I once again applaud the efforts of

         18  my colleagues both first and second round of this

         19  program and those in this, the third round by our

         20  time table, who have tried within these tight time

         21  frames to acquaint themselves with the properties

         22  and the proposed recipients who would develop these

         23  properties.

         24                 The Third Party Transfer Program was

         25  established to ensure that distressed properties
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          2  would simply put properties in tax arrears that have

          3  major violations and are not likely to be able to

          4  correct the situation without help, receive the help

          5  they need, instead of the City serving them a tax

          6  lien, as we do in other situations.

          7                 Today we will hear about six proposed

          8  transfers in Council Member Perkins' District and

          9  one proposed transfer in Council Member Moskowitz's

         10  District.

         11                 Anyone interested in testifying on

         12  any of the items before the Committee, if they would

         13  please sign in with the Sergeant- At- Arm, that is

         14  the handsome gentleman at the table whose hand is

         15  now being raised, enthusiastically.

         16                 I will, Council Member Perkins, do

         17  you want to discuss your concerns before we call the

         18  Administration?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Good

         20  morning, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for this

         21  opportunity to share with you some of the concerns

         22  that I have with regard to what is before us today.

         23  Upon being informed that quite a few buildings in my

         24  District were being considered for Third Party

         25  Transfer, I began to try to establish some of the
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          2  concerns that the community in general had about

          3  such a possible transfer.  And to engage immediately

          4  in conversation with the Administration as well as

          5  Council staff as to some of the details about this

          6  program, this process, and its objectives, et

          7  cetera, as well as to meet with the perspective

          8  tenants and the perspective designees, whether they

          9  were for- profits designees, or whether they were

         10  potential not- for- profit designees.  So that it

         11  was clear to me what were some of the issues and

         12  what were some of the procedures and possible

         13  outcomes that relates to this program, and to,

         14  perhaps, even get involved in some of the

         15  negotiating around some of these concerns.

         16                 Amongst the more outstanding concerns

         17  that became apparent, obviously was the whole

         18  question of displacement, needless to say, the

         19  communities like Harlem are very concerned and very

         20  discomforted about the possibility of displacement

         21  as we move in the climate of gentrification.  And

         22  so, clearly, we wanted to make sure that this was

         23  not a program that was intended for displacement.

         24  And by the same token we were, therefore, very

         25  concerned about the rent and the rent restructuring,
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          2  as well as homeownership opportunities, and of

          3  course, subsidies that were possible, guaranteed for

          4  those tenants that would qualify, to make sure that

          5  even if a tenant did not qualify that they would not

          6  be set with a hardship of having to pay more than 30

          7  percent of their income.

          8                 After a series of meetings and

          9  discussions and phone calls, et cetera, it appears

         10  as if we have been able to come to a meeting of the

         11  minds as it relates to some of these issues.

         12                 I want to take a moment, Mr.

         13  Chairman, to extend my deep appreciation to Robert

         14  Turkowitz and the other staff of the Council for

         15  their involvement and advice and support as I and my

         16  staff moved through this process.   We have

         17  established that, just to be clear, that all tenants

         18  that qualify would be given a Section 8 subsidy when

         19  rents were restructured after the construction took

         20  place.  We established that in those buildings that

         21  wanted a homeownership opportunity similar to what

         22  we have experienced historically with the Til

         23  Program that these buildings would identify for

         24  themselves a not- for- profit community- based group

         25  within the list of those that had been pre-
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          2  approved, and develop a Memorandum of Understanding

          3  towards that end that essentially said that as they

          4  have been designated to be the Third Party Transfer

          5  owner, that in fact they would move towards

          6  providing that ownership opportunity to the tenant

          7  association.

          8                 As it relates to rent restructuring,

          9  no rent restructure will take place until after

         10  construction, that is, those tenants that lived in

         11  HDFCs will continue to pay the "maintenance now

         12  rent" that they're presently paying, and that post

         13  construction rents would be restructured to meet the

         14  operating costs.  Those rents that were, those

         15  tenants that qualify would receive Section 8 so that

         16  they would not experience a hardship, and those

         17  tenants that did not qualify would not pay more than

         18  30 percent in their rent (sic).  In any case, they

         19  would all be subject to the Rent Stabilization Laws.

         20    So we were pleased about that and clearly wanted

         21  to make sure that there was no displacement.  And in

         22  those buildings where there might have been SROs and

         23  some possible, all those incumbent tenants that

         24  lived in those properties would not be displaced,

         25  would not experience any rent above their means, and
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          2  that to the extent that, in my district anyway,

          3  where there are vacant SROs, those vacant SROs after

          4  accommodating the needs of the incumbent tenants

          5  would possibly be made available for homeownership.

          6                 So with that in mind, we decided to

          7  proceed essentially in approving some of the

          8  projects, but we have a few that are outstanding and

          9  we are asking that they not be approved, and those

         10  are those that are part of the Preconsidered motion

         11  before us today.  And the essential concern right

         12  there is that the Memorandum of Understanding

         13  between the not- for- profit group, in this case,

         14  Manhattan Valley Development Corporation and

         15  Ecumenical has not been finalized, so rather than

         16  approve it at this time, we are hopeful that that

         17  understanding, especially with the support of HPD

         18  will be taken care of in time, so that on the 25th

         19  we can allow the Council to approve these as well.

         20  So in the end, I think we have been able to work out

         21  a decent agreement that protects the rights of the

         22  tenants, and in fact, empowers them in terms of the

         23  opportunity for them to become homeowners.  And for

         24  those HDFCs that may have lost that opportunity by

         25  virtue of their arrears, they have a second
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          2  opportunity through this negotiation to reconstitute

          3  themselves, and again, become an HDFC that can

          4  regain control over their homes and run it for

          5  themselves.

          6                 So that is where we're at right now.

          7  I appreciate, again, the cooperation of staff in

          8  helping us get this way, and the cooperation of HPD

          9  in participating in the discussions and the

         10  clarifications and what not, thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         12  Council member.  As I stated initially, anyone who

         13  wanted to speak on items on today's agenda, the

         14  three bills, Intro. 802, Intro. 836, and the

         15  Preconsidered bills, should sign up for that

         16  purpose, with the Sergeant- At- Arms, to my left and

         17  your right, I decided to put him under the clock.

         18                 There are, I noticed, four

         19  individuals Heyward Dotson, Judith Thames, Wanda

         20  Jones, and Bill- Lee Lanndis, who all want to speak

         21  on properties that are not on today's agenda, they

         22  are not on today's agenda, 644 Riverside Drive, 640

         23  Riverside Drive, those items, those buildings are

         24  not subject of today's hearing.  However, since

         25  you're here and if you want to wait until we have
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          2  exhausted all of our other business, the Chair will

          3  give you an opportunity to express your concerns to

          4  the Committee, but you would have to do it very

          5  briefly and succinctly.

          6                 That having been said, Council Member

          7  Perkins, do you want to be recognized?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thanks,

          9  again.  Mr. Chairman, you know the crackerjack staff

         10  that we have pays attention and heard me express

         11  something that I did not mean, and I want to thank

         12  Mary Mastropolo for that.  Apparently, I said 30

         13  percent of rent, what I meant was 30 percent of

         14  income.  Okay, so 30 percent of income, I see

         15  everyone nodding, so you're all paying attention

         16  too, that is good.

         17                 So I appreciate it, once again, our

         18  staff's vigilance in this process, and for the

         19  record, thank you for allowing me to clear the

         20  record.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay,

         22  Commissioner of HPD or her representative, if you're

         23  here, please, take a seat and we will want to hear

         24  testimony, I think on all of the items today, might

         25  as well get all out of the way, and then we will go
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          2  to the general public.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Good

          4  morning, Chairman Spigner and members of the

          5  Committee.  My name is Kimberly Hardy. I'm Deputy

          6  Commissioner for Development at the New York City

          7  Department of Housing Preservation and Development.

          8  Thank you for asking us here to speak about Intro.

          9  802.

         10                 One of the City's oldest and most

         11  powerful tools to foster reinvestment now are

         12  existing in older housing stock, achieved

         13  significant capital improvement and upgrading of the

         14  housing stock, and encourage energy conservation is

         15  properly known as the J- 51 Program.

         16                 J- 51 provides tax exemption and tax

         17  abatement for a long list of rehabilitation efforts

         18  to existing housing.  These efforts include

         19  plumbing, electrical and other systems replacements

         20  and upgrading.  From Fiscal Year 1996 through 2000,

         21  J- 51 benefits have facilitated the rehabilitation

         22  and modernization of approximately 424,409 dwelling

         23  units throughout the City.

         24                 The subject of today's hearing,

         25  Intro. 802, proposes to make J- 51 tax benefits
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          2  applicable to cooperative, condominiums and Article

          3  11 Housing Development Fund Companies that convert

          4  to a master building electrical meter tied to

          5  individual dwelling unit submeters.  There are

          6  apparently electric rate price advantages that can

          7  be obtained by this master meter, submeter

          8  arrangement. And this metering system may make sense

          9  for certain residential buildings.

         10                 However, it is unclear that lower

         11  electricity prices are an energy conservation tool.

         12  In fact, it can be argued that lower rates increase

         13  usage by encouraging the additional operation of

         14  energy consuming devices.  There is no requirement

         15  in this proposed legislation that the entity or

         16  board that is contracting with the electricity

         17  provider will pass any savings obtained through the

         18  master metering onto individual apartment residents.

         19  The board or entity might choose to place a mark- up

         20  or a fee on the individual apartment users.

         21                 The effect of payment default is

         22  equally unclear. Individual residents might not be

         23  aware of service cutoff notices and/or the building

         24  as a whole might be threatened with service cutoffs

         25  for the failure of some apartments to meet their
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          2  obligations.

          3                 The Department of Housing

          4  Preservation and Development sees no problem with

          5  individual residential buildings or groups of

          6  buildings seeking to take advantage of new

          7  technology and changing regulations with respect to

          8  electricity supply and purchase.  Since, however,

          9  the outcome of this proposal does not meet the

         10  programmatic guidelines, our goals of J- 51, and

         11  that is to provide major capital improvement to

         12  rehabilitate or reconstruct the existing housing

         13  stock and to conserve energy.   Our agency does not

         14  believe that this proposal should be eligible for J-

         15  51 benefits, nor that New York City tax revenues

         16  should be lost because certain buildings choose to

         17  buy and bill for their electricity in this manner.

         18                 That concludes my testimony, and I

         19  will be happy to take questions from any of the

         20  members.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, in the

         22  event that Intro. 802 is passed, what is the number

         23  of properties that might be eligible for the

         24  benefits of this legislation?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  My
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          2  understanding is that the universe could be anywhere

          3  from 80,000 to some unknown number above that

          4  amount.  We would be happy to look into that, but I

          5  don't have an exact figure for you, today.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Oh in the event

          7  that we did pass this bill, how would you go about

          8  determining the allowable abatement per apartment,

          9  could you conceive of a process by which you would

         10  assign?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Well, I

         12  think we would follow some of the procedures that we

         13  have in place for determining the other benefits,

         14  but we have not come up with an exact procedure as

         15  to what we would allot for each submeter.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So you have

         17  drawn a conclusion that by reducing the cost of

         18  energy would encourage more, or would discourage

         19  conservation?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  It's

         21  possible.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  That is one

         23  possible outcome. All right.  Any member of the

         24  Committee have a question on this? All right, well,

         25  thank you so much.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Oh, do you have

          5  an estimate of the cost, but you don't know how many

          6  buildings are involved or how you would assess it,

          7  do you have any estimate at what the cost would be?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  At this

          9  time I don't have an estimate.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, thank

         11  you.  Okay, now we're going to go to Intro. No. 836.

         12    Okay, anyone from the Administration testifying on

         13  836?  Okay, I'm informed that the Administration is

         14  not prepared to testify on 836.

         15                 Mr. Oddo, prime sponsor of the bill,

         16  you wanted to?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Please.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And this is a

         19  first hearing on this bill, I don't anticipate that

         20  we're going to vote on this bill either today, so

         21  let's hear your rationale or support of this bill.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.  Let me just begin by thanking you and the

         24  Speaker for affording this bill a hearing, and I

         25  want to thank more than 20 of my colleagues from
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          2  across the aisle, from across the City representing

          3  each Borough that have co-sponsored this bill.

          4  Clearly, by virtue of that sponsorship, it is clear

          5  that this is a concern that is Citywide.

          6                 If I may I just want to talk about

          7  how I got involved with and the genesis of this

          8  bill.  I represent a portion of Staten Island known

          9  as Midland Beach, which was essentially a bungalow

         10  community where folks used to live solely during the

         11  summer.  In the 1970s and the 1980s, some ingenious

         12  profiteers decided that they could take these

         13  bungalows, illegally convert them and then go to the

         14  City of New York and ask to participate in programs

         15  like Section 8 and EARP.  So essentially what you

         16  have is people in crisis, people in need, people in

         17  need of a safe dwelling being placed into what

         18  essentially, as I call them, bungalows on steroids.

         19                 And what this bill seeks to do is to

         20  protect three universes of individuals.

         21                 1.   The people in need who are being

         22  placed through these programs.

         23                 2.   Is the folks who live adjacent

         24  to these illegal structures; and,

         25                 3.   The men and women of the New
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          2  York City Fire Department, who inevitably and

          3  invariably are called to fight fires that happen.

          4                 I mean, these are not union jobs and

          5  professional licensed plumbers and electricians

          6  doing these illegal conversions. And while I

          7  understand the City's crisis and the City's need to

          8  place people into structures, placing them into fire

          9  traps is certainly not the appropriate response.

         10                 I just want to read for you a quick

         11  except from a 1999 article from the Staten Island

         12  Advance about one of these people, and the

         13  description is about the place that she was living

         14  in.  Her name was Jennifer Manley and she moved into

         15  a tiny, first floor apartment at 170 Bayden Place.

         16  She lives in a bungalow that has been converted into

         17  a three- story house.  The home is

         18  disproportionately tall for its width and looks

         19  something out of a Tim Burton film.  The second- and

         20  third- floors of the home are burned out in the back

         21  from a fire that took place in December.  The fire

         22  left the upstairs floors open to the elements and

         23  that has been trouble for Ms. Manley.

         24                 There is a mess of siding, rocks and

         25  glass in the backyard and there are birds that make
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          2  their way into the house and somehow up through Ms.

          3  Manley's toilet bowl.

          4                 These folks are in crisis, placing

          5  them into these structures is an absolute sin.  And

          6  it is only by the grace of God that this section in

          7  my district hasn't sparked up one night and taken

          8  out a whole row of homes.  And my heart goes out to

          9  my colleague, Reverend Foster and his constituents,

         10  because my worst nightmare took place in his

         11  district a few weeks ago, when an entire section, an

         12  entire block was burned out.

         13                 What I'm simply trying to do, is what

         14  we do across the City in terms of our Vendex.  When

         15  we do a business with landlords, we should treat

         16  them as vendors, and instead of doing a Vendex

         17  check, we should a habitability check.

         18                 And this bill simply says, prior to

         19  the City placing any of these people in need into a

         20  structure, we first see if there is a Certificate of

         21  Occupancy, we first see if there are violations on

         22  the property.  So that if there are, we don't place

         23  people in dangerous situations.

         24                 Let me just say that this bill is not

         25  a perfect bill, it is not intended to be a perfect
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          2  bill, it's too narrow in scope in some respects,

          3  perhaps it is too much of a shotgun approach and

          4  others.  What we're seeking to address are absentee

          5  landlords who are essentially profiteers.

          6                 I know there has been some concern in

          7  some communities that every building has violations,

          8  even a minor violation, and if this bill were to

          9  pass as written, even those buildings with minor

         10  violations will not be able to participate in the

         11  Section 8 Program.  That is not the intended

         12  audience.

         13                 I just want to thank you, again,

         14  Chairman Spigner. What we're trying to do, is

         15  prevent the loss of life, be it the people who we

         16  are trying help, the neighbors who already live in

         17  the community, and again, the men and women of the

         18  New York City Fire Department who invariably and

         19  inevitably are asked to fight these fires.

         20                 So I want to thank all my colleagues

         21  for signing on, and I hope that this is the

         22  beginning of the process where we can, together,

         23  draft a solid piece of legislation and to protect

         24  various parts of the City of New York.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you,

          3  Council Member Oddo.  Our procedure now, I'm just

          4  going to have to put the public on 836 on hold for a

          5  few moments while we take up testimony from the HPD

          6  officials who are here and whose schedule require

          7  that they move onto other business, to give their

          8  testimony now on, what is this number, 8 - -  anyway

          9  the Third Party Transfer.  Oh, the Preconsidered

         10  bills, they have no number, that is why I couldn't

         11  find the number, Preconsidered bills have no number.

         12                 So if you would identify yourself,

         13  again, for the record, we would be happy to hear

         14  your testimony.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Good

         16  morning, Chairman Spigner and members of the

         17  Committee.  My name is John Warren, and I'm Deputy

         18  Commissioner of Housing Operations at HPD.  To my

         19  right is Kim Hardy, Deputy Commissioner of

         20  Development at HPD.  I appreciate the opportunity to

         21  discuss the Third Party Transfer Program with this

         22  Committee this morning.

         23                 The Third Party Transfer Program was

         24  created in 1996 when the Giuliani Administration and

         25  the City Council worked together on landmark
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          2  legislation designed to provide the City with the

          3  opportunity to address the problem of privately

          4  owned buildings with substantial tax arrears and a

          5  high count of Code violations. With the passage of

          6  Local Law 37 in 1996, properties are now transferred

          7  to new responsible owners with the commitment of

          8  renovation and without the displacement of existing

          9  tenants.  Along with the agency's continuing

         10  initiative to divest the City- owned stock and our

         11  commitment to anti- abandonment strategies, the

         12  Third Party Transfer Program is a cornerstone of

         13  HPD's efforts at restoring and maintaining

         14  affordable housing.

         15                 Local Law 37 includes a process for

         16  identifying distressed properties and excluding them

         17  from the City's main tax enforcement policy, the Tax

         18  Lien Sale.  Distressed property is defined as any

         19  residential class property that has a lien- to-

         20  value ratio equal to or greater than 15 percent and

         21  with an average of five or more hazardous or

         22  immediately hazardous Housing Code violations per

         23  unit or with emergency repair in liens in an amount

         24  greater than $1,000.  The goal is to identify

         25  buildings which pose a threat to current tenants;
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          2  buildings which represent a blighting influence on

          3  City neighborhoods.

          4                 The current owners of these

          5  properties are given numerous notices of their right

          6  other have the property removed from the Action

          7  through full repayment or by entering into an

          8  installment agreement with Department of Finance

          9  prior to foreclosure or during the subsequent final

         10  four- month mandatory redemption period.

         11                 In Round 1, often referred to as the

         12  Bronx Pilot, action was initiated against 174

         13  properties, 114 owners either paid their taxes in

         14  full or entered into installment agreements, 14

         15  properties were removed for legal or technical

         16  reasons, and 46 properties were approved for

         17  transfer by City Council and eventually deeded to a

         18  new owner.

         19                 In Round II, which is ongoing, action

         20  was initiated against 298 properties in the Bronx,

         21  Brooklyn and Manhattan, approximately 104 owners

         22  have either paid their taxes in full or entered into

         23  installment agreements, 98 properties were removed

         24  for legal or technical reasons, 43 properties in the

         25  Bronx and Brooklyn were approved for transfer by the
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          2  City Council and deeded to a new owner and 53

          3  properties are currently before the Council.

          4                 In order to ensure that the new

          5  owners for properties in the Third Party Transfer

          6  pipeline are able to carry out their

          7  responsibilities to rehabilitate and operate the

          8  housing, the City established a procedure to create

          9  a list of Qualified Developers for the Third Party

         10  Transfer Program.  In December 1998 and again in

         11  April 2000, Requests for Qualifications, RFQs, were

         12  issued to qualify developers for participation in

         13  the Program.

         14                 HPD examined the relevant experience

         15  of the respondents including:

         16                 Experience managing residential

         17  housing particularly affordable housing.

         18                 Experience with full gut renovations

         19  and/or with moderate rehabilitation with tenants in

         20  place.

         21                 Financial capacity to provide equity

         22  contribution to rehabilitation loans.

         23                 HPD also looked at respondents'

         24  experience working with governmental housing

         25  programs, experiences in low- income communities,
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          2  working with community organizations and addressing

          3  issues of crime and safety in buildings.  In

          4  addition, HPD researched the number of code

          5  violations, property registration and housing

          6  litigation issues in properties developed, owned or

          7  managed by respondents.  HPD also gathered

          8  information on particular areas of expertise that

          9  developers may possess such as developing small

         10  buildings for home ownership, working with special

         11  needs populations or managing Single Room Occupancy

         12  housing.

         13                 HPD received 120 responses to the

         14  1998 RFQ.  Sixty nine applicants were approve as

         15  Qualified Developers.  For the Year 2000 RFQ, HPD

         16  receive 94 responses from new applicants, and 63

         17  entities were approved in addition to those already

         18  approved from Round I.  So there are a total of 132

         19  approved Qualified Developers.  The approved

         20  Qualified Developers represent for-profit and

         21  not-for-profit organizations, local entrepreneurs,

         22  neighborhood-based community groups and large

         23  citywide companies or non-profits.  While this pool

         24  of developers represents a broad array of entities,

         25  the HPD process ensures that any group on the list
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          2  is duly qualified to manage rehabilitation and

          3  operate affordable residential housing under the

          4  auspices of Third Party Transfer Program.

          5                 In addition to the RFQs, HPD created

          6  a process through which the tenants of buildings in

          7  Third Party Transfer buildings could sign a petition

          8  indicating their interest to pursue tenant ownership

          9  for the property and selecting a non-profit

         10  organization to act as their sponsor.  The sponsor

         11  serves as the designated Qualified Developer to

         12  oversee the rehabilitation of the building and works

         13  with the Tenant Association to build the capacity to

         14  own and operate the housing.  Tenant ownership is

         15  one of several positive outcomes made possible

         16  through the flexibility of the Program.

         17                 Under Local Law 37, at the conclusion

         18  of the four month mandatory redemption period, HPD

         19  has only four additional months to execute a

         20  transfer of the property to negative ownership. This

         21  tight timeline ensures that properties do not

         22  languish in their currently dilapidated conditions,

         23  but instead move into private ownership and are

         24  repaired with all expediency.

         25                 During this short period of time, HPD
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          2  staff undertake the process of matching properties

          3  with qualified owners. First, HPD groups properties

          4  into clusters, which have geographic continuity

          5  and/or are of a specific building type such as small

          6  homes.  In creating clusters, HPD gives special

          7  consideration to the tenant petitions which were

          8  filed under the process described earlier.  There

          9  have been cases in which a tenant petition building

         10  has comprised its own one building cluster  More

         11  typically, clusters are groups of similar buildings

         12  which can be packaged together and financed under a

         13  single rehabilitation loan.  HPD looks to group

         14  vacant and occupied buildings together in one

         15  cluster for financing purposes.  The vacant units

         16  can be rented at market rate, in effect, subsidizing

         17  the loan costs for the current tenants who keep

         18  lower rents.

         19                 HPD then looks to the list of

         20  Qualified Developers to select an entity that has

         21  the requisite management, development and financial

         22  capacity to develop a specific cluster.  For

         23  example, if a cluster is formed of one- to- one unit

         24  home ownership buildings, HPD would want a developer

         25  with experience in that type of housing. Similarly,
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          2  for a cluster demanding renovation of buildings with

          3  a large number of tenants in place we would look for

          4  Qualified Developers with such expertise.  In some

          5  cases, HPD examines whether a given entity has

          6  experience working in the immediate area of a

          7  specific cluster.

          8                 HPD is proud of the results of the

          9  first Round of Third Party Transfer and the progress

         10  to date in Round II.

         11                 First, Round I resulted in the

         12  collection of more that $6.4 million in tax arrears

         13  from owners who paid in full or entered into

         14  installment agreements.

         15                 Second, within 12 months of the

         16  initial transfer, HPD closed on construction loans

         17  for all of the multi- family buildings in the Round

         18  and work is already completed many of the buildings.

         19    Tenants in these buildings, which were formerly

         20  subjected to sub- standard conditions now occupy

         21  fully renovated units at affordable rents.

         22                 In Round II, over $10 million has

         23  been collected from owners of properties originally

         24  included in the Action.  Last month, 34 properties

         25  in Brooklyn and 9 properties in the Bronx were
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          2  transferred to new ownership.  New management is

          3  currently stabilizing immediately hazardous

          4  conditions, working with tenants and drafting plans

          5  for HPD review for a full renovation of each

          6  building.  The results can already be seen as some

          7  properties, which have long languished under neglect

          8  are again receiving services.  HPD anticipates that

          9  in the Bronx and in Brooklyn over 450 units of

         10  quality affordable rental housing, of which

         11  approximately 80 may transfer to tenant cooperative

         12  units over time, and 9 homeownership small buildings

         13  will be developed through Round II of Third Party

         14  Transfer.

         15                 The selected developers for Round II

         16  represent an excellent cross- section of the

         17  Qualified Developers.  A large percentage of the

         18  units, 45 percent citywide, are slated to go to the

         19  not- for- profit sector and ultimately be converted

         20  into tenant owned or controlled housing.  Smaller

         21  scale local developers who have built their capacity

         22  working through the HPD Neighborhood Entrepreneur

         23  Program are ready to redevelop roughly 270 rental

         24  units.  Our collective efforts to nurture the local

         25  real estate infrastructure in low- income
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          2  communities is resulting in greater local, private,

          3  responsive and responsible property management in

          4  the long term.  Other for- profit and not- for-

          5  profit organizations of varying sizes are

          6  represented as well.

          7                 The Third Party Transfer Program is

          8  an efficient and effective means of identifying

          9  distressed properties, rapidly transferring them to

         10  carefully screened and individually selected private

         11  owners, securing their rehabilitation and ensuring

         12  their long term viability, all while respecting the

         13  rights and tenancies of existing residences.  In

         14  conjunction with HPD's accelerated successful

         15  disposition of the City- owner stock through the

         16  Building Blocks Programs and the agency's enhanced

         17  Anti- Abandonment and education efforts, the Third

         18  Party Transfer is an important tool for maintaining

         19  and improving affordable housing in the City of New

         20  York.  We look forward to moving ahead with Round II

         21  and future Rounds of this crucial program.

         22                 I am pleased to discuss specifics of

         23  the programs or answer any questions you may have.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Oh, and we
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          2  thank you, Commissioner Warren, for your

          3  comprehensive testimony.  It is very informative.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Let me

          7  introduce some, the Council members who are here,

          8  you have already heard from Council Member Oddo; the

          9  Minority Leader of the Republicans, that is, Council

         10  Member Ognibene; Council Member Malave- Dilan from

         11  Brooklyn and also a member of the Committee; Stanley

         12  Michels, the Senior Member of this Committee, who is

         13  from Manhattan; Council Member Madeline Provenzano

         14  from the Bronx; Mike Nelson from Brooklyn, and you

         15  have already met Mr. Perkins.

         16                 On the rent issue, you, Mr. Perkins

         17  has made mention of the 30 percent of the income for

         18  tenants who are already in the building.  Is that a

         19  fact?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes,

         21  that is correct, as Council Member Perkins stated

         22  earlier, rent restructuring would take place in

         23  Third Party Transfer after renovation is completed,

         24  and we would be providing Section 8 to qualified

         25  tenants, and tenants who were not qualified or
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          2  eligible for Section 8 would not pay more than 30

          3  percent of their income in rent.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And if you are

          5  not eligible for Section 8, what is that, income

          6  eligible determined?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

          8  right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So that means

         10  they would have a high- income.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN: That is

         12  correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So there would

         14  be income verification, right?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         16  right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  With the W- 2's

         18  and all that?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  Do these

         21  rights stay with the, are they transferable upon the

         22  death of the tenants?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well the

         24  units would be subject to rent stabilization, so the

         25  tenants would have the rights under rent
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          2  stabilization that they normally would for

          3  succession  -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  For whatever

          5  rent stabilization who is on in terms of

          6  transference, succession, et cetera, et cetera.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN: That is

          8  right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, all

         10  right, now, you mentioned something about the best

         11  qualified, matching properties with qualified

         12  owners, and your testimony was very specific as to

         13  the qualifications, I think it was, anyway, but this

         14  is, it is still totally within the discretion of HPD

         15  to identify the recipient of these properties

         16  potentially valuable properties or you determine who

         17  has the properties or does not have the properties.

         18  So, again, do you want to restate what that process

         19  is and how do you, that you gave a number of those

         20  who did not qualify, but you want to give us some,

         21  the reasons why they did not qualify and reasons for

         22  those who did qualify?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes, we

         24  do, we have done requests for qualifications process

         25  twice to qualify developers, and the RFQ lays out
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          2  some specific categories that we expect people to

          3  have experience in both managing property,

          4  developing affordable housing, and to have financial

          5  ability to participate in the program, so that is

          6  how we came up with 132 Qualified Developers,

          7  including not- for- profits and for- profits.

          8                 And in this process we look at

          9  buildings that they currently own and manage, we

         10  check references and we look at their experience in

         11  both managing and developing property, particularly

         12  in New York City.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  These buildings

         14  receive tax exemption for a number of years.  Is

         15  that correct?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         17  correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  For- profits,

         19  I'm told it's a 20- year exemption.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         21  right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And for non-

         23  profits it's a 40 year exemption.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         25  right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And the purpose

          3  of this difference, would you explain it for the

          4  Committee?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Sure.

          6  The idea of putting in fairly substantial tax

          7  abatements is to ensure affordability and to make

          8  sure that rents are affordable with as little

          9  capital as we can put in as possible.  So it is in

         10  doing our underwriting that we have determined that

         11  to make the loans work appropriately and the debt

         12  service on the buildings, because there are

         13  renovation loans put in place, can, we can minimize

         14  the amount of money that we put in and is put into

         15  debt service by maximizing the tax abatement.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Because taxes

         17  are definitely a part of the cost of doing business.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  I had

         20  some questions, I don't, in regards to that

         21  particular, okay, let's see.   There is a particular

         22  piece of property called the Spitzer Property that

         23  has been the topic of a lot of discussion.  Our

         24  review shows that the letters of recommendation from

         25  Mr. Spitzer is probably, are almost all pre- 1980.
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          2  Are you aware of that?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  I

          4  actually believe some of the letters are more recent

          5  than that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Are more

          7  recent?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes,

          9  yes.  He has had experience developing affordable

         10  housing properties in Brooklyn, dating back over 20

         11  or 25 years.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, now there

         13  is also something called the Cornerstone II property

         14  that Spitzer was recently awarded by HPD.  Could you

         15  describe the process by which he was awarded this

         16  property and where is this property located?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Chairman

         18  Spigner, that property is located in Harlem, and

         19  forgive me, I don't recall the exact location.  It

         20  was awarded through a competitive process through a

         21  request for proposals that included that property

         22  along with several other parcels of vacant land,

         23  primarily located in the Upper Manhattan area, and

         24  it was a competitive process.  And I believe Mr.

         25  Spitzer's organization had a joint venture with
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          2  another organization and was one of several entities

          3  that applied for that and our staff felt that after

          4  looking at the design and the financing that that

          5  was the most feasible project to award, or that was

          6  the most feasible group to award that particular

          7  project to.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  You determined

          9  it to be a good match, or a potentially good match?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Yes, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Again, it is

         12  your discretion.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  With which this

         15  is.  What happens if a developer feels he has been

         16  denied, is there any appeal process for him or her?

         17  Well, just tough, tough, huh, tough noogies.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Well,

         19  it's, no, I think that we generally try to meet with

         20  any developer that might feel that they, how you put

         21  it, were denied a property.  But we have a process

         22  in place and usually when we issue a competitive

         23  proposal be it an RFP or an RFQ, we have a committee

         24  that reviews the proposals and it is a process and

         25  it is a consensus within the agency as to the best
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          2  proposal that wins.  And then, of course, that

          3  proposal has to come to the Council through either

          4  UDAAP or ULURP, so you know ultimately the Council

          5  will vote on the developer.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Did the

          7  Cornerstone property come to the Council?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  It has

          9  not come yet, we issued the RFP late last spring,

         10  and I don't believe, it has not come yet.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, but it

         12  will come to the Council.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Oh, yes,

         14  it will.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  But I was

         16  questioning this morning how could have this

         17  possibly transpired without some Council approval or

         18  even knowledge.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Of

         20  course.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And, now, do

         22  you want to give us the address of the Cornerstone

         23  property so that we can begin our own review?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Okay, and

         25  I will get that to you after the hearing, I just
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          2  don't want to work from my memory.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And you do a

          4  thorough review of all of these applicants and those

          5  that are certified as to be the possible recipients

          6  and all of their documentation is reviewed? And what

          7  if you find that someone has submitted inaccurate or

          8  misleading or false information?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Typically

         10  if it is, excuse me, I guess you would call it a

         11  substantial type of problem that we would not work

         12  with that person or that entity.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So it wouldn't

         14  be nice.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Right.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Right.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  But

         18  generally speaking- -

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Right, if

         20  it is minor.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes,

         22  that is okay. What we fine is that people tend to

         23  not be misleading, but to merely, you know, not have

         24  a complete package, and we normally give people an

         25  opportunity to submit a complete package if they
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          2  have left out one piece of information or an

          3  attachment of some kind, often we give them an

          4  opportunity to provide that information.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, now you

          6  say that a building that has a 15 percent loan to

          7  value ratio, or more or less than a 15 percent loan

          8  to value is eligible for transfer.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes, 15

         10  percent lien to value, taxes on the property versus

         11  the assessed value of the property.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, now what

         13  is included in computing the value or the negatives?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  The

         15  negatives would be municipal charges owed, so the

         16  real estate taxes, water and sewer charges, any ER

         17  repairs that were done.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Emergency

         19  Repair.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Charges.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  The

         23  Department of Health fines, anything like that, any

         24  municipal charges.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And then that,
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          2  once it has reached that level it would be declared

          3  not for lien sale, but for Third Party Transfer.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

          5  correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  With all of the

          7  enriched benefits that comes as part of this

          8  program, and the purpose of this program is to do

          9  what, I will let you state it again?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  It's to

         11  take property that is distressed and not being well

         12  maintained by owners and put it in the hands of

         13  responsible owners.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And ultimately

         15  hopefully to the goal that specific tenants in the

         16  neighborhoods would benefit and all New York City as

         17  a whole.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:

         19  Absolutely.  And it is also a tax enforcement

         20  program to a certain extent as you read in my

         21  testimony, it has actually been able to get people

         22  to pay their taxes and come up to - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And it restores

         24  properties to the tax roll.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is
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          2  right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member

          4  Michels has some questions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, thank

          6  you very much. Good morning.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Good

          8  morning.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Good

         10  morning.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  When you

         12  select, determine who should be getting the Third

         13  Party Transfer, you have certain criteria, and I'm

         14  talking about two buildings in my district, which

         15  are up for Third Party Transfer, namely you have

         16  Slash Settlement House.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And could

         19  you tell us why they were chosen?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  They

         21  were chosen because they, Settlement Housing - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Settlement

         23  Housing Fund.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN: - -  Fund

         25  is a well known, citywide, not- for- profit who has
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          2  had extensive experience in housing development for

          3  easily 25 years, and you have the Urban Homestead

          4  Assistance Board, also a very long track record both

          5  with HPD and with the State in developing affordable

          6  housing and in providing training to tenants who

          7  seek to become homeowners.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Now these

          9  two buildings, what is eventually going to happen to

         10  these two buildings?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well the

         12  idea is that they will transferred as a rental

         13  property to Settlement Housing Fund, and UHAB - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  See I think

         15  you have already testified and there is no increase

         16  in the rent during this period of rehabilitation.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         18  correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  We have to

         20  have an agreement on.  So there is no, no one can be

         21  worried about having their rents go up?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         23  right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And then

         25  after the transfer title, then what happens?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  After

          3  the transfer title rehabilitation will be performed

          4  through a loan with HPD, and after renovation in

          5  completed the building will operate, hopefully, you

          6  know, probably as a rental for some period of time,

          7  and if the tenants and the owner can get together on

          8  a co- op plan, the transfer to the plan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So

         10  eventually the appeal again habitancy here is they

         11  end up being a co- op.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         13  correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And all the

         15  tenants will then, and those tenants, after it is

         16  converted into a co- op, will the tenants who do not

         17  wish to purchase their apartment be able to remain

         18  as rent stabilized tenants?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes, it

         20  would be subject to the normal co- op conversion

         21  plans approved by the State Attorney General.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And

         23  generally speaking they will not have to pay more

         24  than 30 percent of their increase, 30 percent of

         25  their income for rent.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

          3  right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So there

          5  would be a limit of 30 percent of their income.

          6                 I was hoping, you know, there are

          7  some people from these two buildings.  I have been

          8  working with these two buildings for some number of

          9  years, and we received an overwhelming number of

         10  petitions from them and I have gone to the building,

         11  and there are some questions that they wanted, and I

         12  may not know the answers to, and I would hope that

         13  you have somebody around who could possibly stay

         14  around and listen, and answer the questions that

         15  they have?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:

         17  Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Also on the

         19  issue of submetering, I understand the

         20  Administration's position, at this particular time,

         21  is not in favor of the legislation that we have in

         22  front of us.  But I think there may be some

         23  questions on that, and I would hope that somebody

         24  would be around to listen to that testimony?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:
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          2  Absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Okay, I

          4  think that is my questions, thank you very much.

          5  That is all, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member

          7  Perkins.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

          9  very much.  I have a few questions, I hope I can

         10  take a little time.  I wanted to get an idea of two

         11  things.

         12                 First, I want to, for the record, Mr.

         13  Chairman, at this point include as part of the

         14  record a letter that I received from HPD dated April

         15  10th, 2001 regarding the Third Party Transfer, which

         16  spells out some commitments and some understandings

         17  about how this particular round will take place in

         18  my district, and it is signed by the Commissioner,

         19  Jerilyn Perine, and cc'd to my colleagues, Council

         20  Member Stanley Michels, who participated with me in

         21  some of the discussions.

         22                 So should I hand this over to our

         23  staff now?  Okay, it will be a part of the record.

         24                 Now I wanted to find out first, with

         25  regard to the HDFCs, the Housing Development Fund,
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          2  the present low- income co- ops, that are now a part

          3  of the Third Party Transfer Program.  Now very often

          4  they are interested in getting some sort of

          5  forgiveness, they don't want to go into the program,

          6  they're afraid that sort of the ownership

          7  opportunity that they have is going to be lost,

          8  they're prepared to restructure themselves and look

          9  to an opportunity to remain a co- op.  That

         10  opportunity, I understand, is going to be made

         11  available to them by virtue of the conversations

         12  that we have had, and I just like for you to sort of

         13  take us through some of the steps in a large picture

         14  way as to how we're going to ensure that?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Okay.

         16  The method for working with the current HDFCs who

         17  are in the Third Party Transfer to reconstitute

         18  themselves as a co- op is to go through Third Party

         19  Transfer and to work with a not- for- profit who

         20  will take ownership to the building, and then

         21  reconvey as a co- op after the Third Party Transfer

         22  Action has taken place.

         23                 So generally speaking it would be in

         24  cooperation with a not- for- profit owner similar to

         25  the tenants petitions that we discussed with Council
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          2  Member Michels, where the tenants are interested in

          3  becoming a co- op after the fact.  So it, in fact,

          4  would go through the Third Party Transfer Action.

          5  There would be a new owner, a not- for- profit who

          6  then would work with the tenants to reconstitute as

          7  a co- op.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And

          9  therefore, the hundreds of thousands of dollars of

         10  debt, what happens with that?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  The

         12  Third Party Transfer Action means that the current

         13  charges are wiped clean, and essentially the

         14  building starts with a clean slate with a 40- year

         15  tax abatement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And the

         17  opportunity to get loans at a low interest and rehab

         18  the property?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  HPD is

         20  expecting to provide subsidized loan products for

         21  the buildings going through Third Party Transfer to

         22  the extent that they need substantial work we would

         23  expect to subsidized that, even if it is lessor

         24  work, we actually have our 8- A Loan Program that

         25  would be available, as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And for

          3  those who live in the HDFC, they will continue to

          4  pay what they're presently paying?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

          6  right.  As you mentioned earlier, the current co- op

          7  shareholders who are paying maintenance would pay

          8  that amount as rent during this interim period.  And

          9  then once construction is completed there would be

         10  rent restructuring with the Section 8 and the rent

         11  guidelines that we discussed earlier.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And again, I

         13  just want to, and they will be able to then to work

         14  out an arrangement to become a co- op.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         16  the intent.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  To

         18  reconstitute themselves as a co- op?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         20  the intent, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay.  That

         22  is the intent and that is what we're working out

         23  with regard to a Memorandum of Understanding

         24  between, with those not- for- profit groups that are

         25  in this situation.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes, I

          3  believe we have all had discussions with the

          4  selected not- for- profits to emphasize the

          5  importance of affording the tenants their

          6  homeownership opportunity.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And you

          8  realize that, well, I want to thank Harvey Epstein

          9  and C. Ello (phonetic) for their legal expertise in

         10  this matter, that those matters that I have held

         11  over, that I have as of now rejected, are being

         12  rejected until such time that that understanding can

         13  be worked out.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes,

         15  we're aware.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And you will

         17  be in touch with the respective not- for- profits to

         18  encourage them to sign up such a memo.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:

         20  Certainly to express their intent in writing to work

         21  toward homeownership for the tenants.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, and

         23  thank you very much as far as that is concerned.

         24                 Do you intend on having another Round

         25  of Third Party Transfer, particularly in my
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          2  district?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes,

          4  we're actually, we expect Third Party Transfer to be

          5  an annual process so we're identifying properties

          6  now for next years' action.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Do you have

          8  any idea on how many properties will be involved?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  It is

         10  approximately 350 properties.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Three

         12  hundred and fifty properties in my district?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  And that

         14  is citywide.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Oh,

         16  citywide, okay, okay, all right.  So, do you have

         17  just a rough idea of approximately how many of that

         18  350 will be in my district?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes,

         20  we're actually working on that, so we can follow up

         21  with that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Do you have

         23  any idea on how soon you will know?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  I would

         25  say a couple of weeks to get some numbers together.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes, you

          3  know, I'm very anxious about this information.  This

          4  is a very intense process, it's a 45- day sprint in

          5  which a lot of issues have to be identified and

          6  resolved, and it imposes a lot of attention, a lot

          7  of time, and a lot of energy, so I want to get ahead

          8  of the curve this time. The community wants to get

          9  ahead of the curve this time, and so there are a few

         10  things that I'm concerned about happening prior to

         11  me actually receiving the specific buildings that

         12  perhaps might be in Third Party Transfer.

         13                 So, for instance, you know we have

         14  had some success with a Task Force established with

         15  NEP that helped us to anticipate what was coming,

         16  look at the issues, look at the possible not- for

         17  profits and other potential designees, and I would

         18  like to have a conversation with you, if not now,

         19  soon, to see how we can establish that kind of a

         20  process, whereby we would have more input in this

         21  that goes beyond just HPD.  And I think it helps

         22  resolve some of the issues.

         23                 Do you have any thoughts about that

         24  at this time?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  I think
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          2  we would be happy to talk about how something like

          3  that would work, and would be interested to hear

          4  your ideas about how that would be implemented.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay.  The

          6  list of groups that are pre- qualified, is that pre-

          7  qualifying period over? Obviously, there are some

          8  groups that are interested that may not have been

          9  aware of or may have changed their minds and decided

         10  that well this is something that we need to do

         11  because it is so important to the neighborhood.  So

         12  I'm trying to open up that process again to get

         13  additional groups from the neighborhood in there,

         14  because, for instance, as we were looking at this,

         15  there was some concerns expressed about certain, for

         16  instance, not- for profits that are in this process

         17  that are not community- based, home- grown, not-

         18  for- profit organizations, who have the

         19  qualifications and the wherewithal to do this Third

         20  Party Transfer. With no disrespect to Settlement

         21  Housing or WSFSH, West Side for Senior Housing, or

         22  any of those groups, all of whom, I'm sure have a

         23  commendable track record.  A part of our effort is

         24  to not simply protect the interest of the people who

         25  live in the community, but also to develop those
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          2  community- based organizations as part of the

          3  institutional network of the community.  And so, as

          4  much as possible, we would like to see them

          5  participate in this.  It relieves anxiety in terms

          6  of the residences, and at the same time it adds to

          7  community development.

          8                 So I'm hoping that the process is not

          9  closed, to pre- qualify.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Well,

         11  there was an RFQ, was issued last Spring and that

         12  period has closed, but we intend to issue another

         13  RFQ in which new groups can come in and apply.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And so for

         15  the next round that are 350 citywide, the pre-

         16  qualified lists will be reopened.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  It's

         18  right now we are trying to determine the timing of

         19  when we can issue the next RFQ.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Let me just

         21  clarify something, because I see a list of pre-

         22  qualified, and then I see another list of those who

         23  are selected through the RFQ.

         24                 Now this is what I want, I want,

         25  because those who are not pre- qualified will never
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          2  be part of the RFQ, that is my understanding.  Those

          3  who are selected as potential Third Party

          4  Transferrers have to be pre- qualified.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Right.

          6  And let me just clarify something because I may be

          7  using the term pre- qualified a little different

          8  than you may be, Council member.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  There is

         11  an RFQ that we have issued in the past that we have

         12  mentioned and we plan to issue another one.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Then that

         14  RFQ is directed towards whom?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  That is

         16  open to the public.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, so

         18  this is not the pool - -

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  That is

         20  open to non profit, and that is open to for- profit

         21  developers.  Now what we also have as part of the

         22  RFQ process, we pre- qualify developers be they non-

         23  profits or for- profits that participate in some of

         24  our other HPD programs, the one you mentioned, NEP,

         25  for the Neighborhood Entrepreneurs; NRP, the
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          2  Neighborhood Redevelopment Program, would be another

          3  example of programs where entities that have worked

          4  with us through those programs that are

          5  automatically qualified or pre- qualified to become

          6  Third Party Transfer designees.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay.  So I

          8  guess before the next round, what will we do to open

          9  up the process so that this list that I have can be

         10  expanded?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Well I

         12  think we can look into and try to establish the

         13  timing of our next RFQ to see if there is sufficient

         14  time to do that before the next action, but I'm not

         15  sure whether there is at this point, but we

         16  certainly can get back to you and discuss, and be

         17  happy to discuss it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  So let me

         19  just understand you, hopefully, I'm wrong.  There is

         20  a possibility that you will not open it up to be

         21  expanded.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Well I

         23  just want to check on the timing of what our next

         24  RFQ should be.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Well is the
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          2  next RFQ going other happen in the next few weeks?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, in the

          5  next few months?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Maybe the

          7  next few months.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, I

          9  would strongly urge that the pool be expanded,

         10  number one.  Number two, the groups that respond to

         11  the RFQ are responding to be selected for one of the

         12  particular buildings that are identified.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  No, not

         14  necessarily, they're just responding to, responding

         15  to request to participate in the Third Party

         16  Transfer Program, and then there is a list of

         17  criteria.  They would have to - -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  All right,

         19  so this is the so- called pre- qualified groups.

         20  And then you look at the group and you decide

         21  amongst them which ones best suit your needs per

         22  building or per cluster of buildings.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Right,

         24  except for those buildings where the tenants select

         25  the non- profits.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, so you

          3  are choosing the groups - -

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Sorry.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  You are

          6  choosing the Third Parties without the input of the

          7  Council or the Community Board or anybody, you are

          8  just making that based on what you know?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Well,

         10  right, we make recommendations to the Council as we

         11  typically do for most of our programs.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, in the

         13  future we don't want to do that.  In the future,

         14  what you want is not to make those kind of

         15  determinations, especially considering the way we

         16  this process happened.  Why?  Because it is so, when

         17  you make that designation, right, the way I

         18  understand what happened, we then only have 45 days

         19  to look at this and to figure out how to play with

         20  this, how to make this work for the community.  I

         21  don't want you deciding what groups, I don't want

         22  you deciding unilaterally what groups can best serve

         23  the interest of the community, without having the

         24  opportunity to say no, we have a special needs not-

         25  for profit groups that works in our neighborhood
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          2  that can do that.  You know, how do we make those

          3  exchanges, if we don't have those conversations?

          4  And then, if we don't have those conversations and

          5  there is an insistence on your part, a unilateral

          6  insistence on your part, then it becomes contentious

          7  and it doesn't meet the purposes that we have in

          8  mind.  Do you understand what I'm saying?          And

          9  that has become a problem in this process, because

         10  many of the groups that could do this that are home-

         11  grown, credible, I don't know why they were not

         12  included.  I don't know if they want included,

         13  because they didn't want to be a part of it like

         14  Aberson and Development Corporation, like Harlem

         15  Churches, Harlem Congregation for Community

         16  Improvement, and so many others who have done a lot

         17  of work with you.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Why were

         20  they not amongst those chosen, which would have made

         21  people have a great deal more confidence that the

         22  selection had some merit as opposed to some

         23  political agenda involved.  Now I'm not saying that

         24  you did, but I'm saying that is how the community

         25  reads it.  And that negative perception, you know,
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          2  creates friction in terms of moving the train

          3  forward.

          4                 So there has to be a process that

          5  allows for that kind of exchange to relieve some of

          6  those types of anxieties. Don't you agree?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  I think

          8  that more communication might be necessary.  I would

          9  like to encourage you that when we do our next RFQ,

         10  we would be more than happy to send out notices to,

         11  if there are any groups that you think might be

         12  interested in it, because we certainly are

         13  interested in expanding the pool of pre- qualified

         14  developers.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  So we

         17  definitely want to see your recommendations in that

         18  regard and any of the other members of the Council.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  And

         20  actually, Council member, if I just can make one

         21  comment?  And that is, the way Local Law 37 was

         22  written, it gave HPD the discretion to match

         23  buildings and groups and to bring it to the Council

         24  for approval and the Mayor for approval under a very

         25  tight time frame.  So that is the way the law was
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          2  written, and that is what we're doing, we're

          3  following that as it was laid out back in 1996.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I know that

          5  you're following the letter of the law, but the

          6  spirit is what I'm dealing with now and the result

          7  of what I'm dealing with now.  And I think that

          8  while you may have the legal prerogative to exclude

          9  people, you know, from your decision- making

         10  process, I think partnership in this matter is what

         11  we're really looking for as a means towards, you

         12  know, expediting this successfully.

         13                 So I'm putting that on the table

         14  recognizing that you are operating, at least this

         15  point, legally, though, don't challenge me to find

         16  out for sure.  But I would rather operate from the

         17  perspective that we're trying to make this work

         18  together as opposed to just moving forward, because

         19  as I said, there had been a lot of questions and

         20  concerns about how these groups are chosen and why

         21  other groups were not chosen, especially groups that

         22  work with you and have the credibility and the track

         23  record.  So we will do that, I hope?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  I think -

         25   -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:

          3  Commissioner, I - -

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  I think

          5  as my colleague said that we will be more than happy

          6  to discuss with you, you know, how you would like

          7  for that to work.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

          9  very much.  I appreciate it.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member

         13  Nelson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Commissioner,

         15  where an applicant is a corporation or a

         16  partnership, does the Department request a complete

         17  listing of residential properties owned or managed

         18  by every officer, or shareholder, or partner, or

         19  other principal in the application?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes, we

         21  request a list of property owned and managed in the

         22  City of New York by every principal of a corporation

         23  who has applied.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, every

         25  one, okay.  Now to what extent does your Department
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          2  request and then evaluate the conditions of other

          3  residential properties owned or managed by an

          4  applicant and its officers, and again shareholder,

          5  partners or other principals?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  We check

          7  our existing databases for Code violations and any

          8  Housing litigation activity, any emergency repair

          9  issues, and we also do site visits, selective site

         10  visits.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And HPD - -

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  And also

         13  tax arrears.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  But only

         15  HPD's?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  I'm

         17  sorry, Council member?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Whose

         19  databases are used for this?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Our own

         21  databases on, as I said, on Code violations and

         22  Housing litigation.  We check the Department of

         23  Finance on municipal charges.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So HPD is the

         25  primary.  And if you do request the information with
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          2  respect to other residential properties owned or

          3  managed by the applicant or any of its principals,

          4  is this limited to properties located in New York

          5  City?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, it does

          8  not extend to out- of- city properties at all?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  No, it

         10  does not.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, this is

         12  my area of focus here.  Okay, later maybe one more

         13  question.  Counsel has this in mind too.  If this

         14  information is requested, what steps does the

         15  Department take to evaluate the quality of that

         16  ownership or management?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  As I

         18  said, we look at the information that has been

         19  provided and that we have called from our own data

         20  sources, and we also conduct site visits to the

         21  respondents buildings to make a field evaluation, as

         22  well.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  Thank

         24  you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member
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          2  Provenzano.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Hey, this

          4  time you got it.  Nice to see you, Mr. Warren.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Thank

          6  you, nice to see you too.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  How do

          8  you select a particular properties for Third Party

          9  Transfers?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  We look

         11  at buildings that are classified as distressed, as I

         12  said in my testimony, so we're looking at clustering

         13  buildings that are classified as distressed.  And

         14  there is a particular subset of buildings that we

         15  also look at, which are buildings that are in our 7-

         16  A Program, so buildings that have a court appointed

         17  receiver managing the property because the landlord

         18  has not been able to manage them up to a reasonable

         19  point.  So it is those set of buildings and the more

         20  general set of distressed buildings that we look at.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  How do

         22  you decide on the clusters?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well we

         24  work with our planning staff who looks at other HPD

         25  investment in the neighborhood, looks at buildings
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          2  that have been a particular concern on a given block

          3  or in a given neighborhood, and we try to put all of

          4  those things together to deal with the buildings

          5  that are the most distressed or have the most

          6  blighting impact in a community.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Now these

          8  are, must all be multiple dwellings, which is what,

          9  more than six units?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Three

         11  units or more.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Three

         13  units or more.  So you could have a cluster of

         14  three- family houses?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes, and

         16  it really depends on what buildings pay up their

         17  taxes and redeem.  We have had a fairly high

         18  redemption rate in the program so that we're

         19  actually encouraging people to pay their taxes and

         20  live up to their commitments as landlords.  And if

         21  they don't, then we take the property.  So the

         22  cluster starts out of a certain size, and as we go

         23  through the process and the owners have an

         24  opportunity to make payments and to redeem their

         25  properties, then they have shrunk down in size,
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          2  until the point where we're at the Council

          3  presenting a package of buildings that we expect to

          4  transfer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Now do

          6  you make this determination by, and this may sound

          7  like a silly question, but, you get information from

          8  the Department of Finance or whoever, so you make

          9  this determination based on people who have not paid

         10  taxes for however many years, and have Housing

         11  violations or Health Code or what have you?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  And then

         14  you decide on, well, there is a bunch of six here,

         15  so we're going to choose this area in the Bronx?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes, and

         17  the law gives us the ability to target a tax block.

         18  So essentially what happens is if there is a

         19  particular property that has been identified as a

         20  problem property based on tax arrears and Code

         21  violations and conditions, we will be targeting that

         22  building.  But any building on the block that owes,

         23  any lot on the block that owes taxes can also get

         24  picked up in the Third Party Transfer that way.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  And can a
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          2  developer that, I guess that you have already

          3  chosen, can they request a specific property, or you

          4  know, either, or in any part of the City, or a

          5  cluster?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well,

          7  generally speaking they're not going to know which

          8  buildings are going to get through the process,

          9  because the owners have the ability to pay off, and

         10  we're not circulating lists to developers at any

         11  point in the process.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay, so

         13  you first have this list, and then they have the

         14  option, the owner could either pay it off themselves

         15  and that kind of narrows it down.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         17  right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         19  What happens if you offer a developer property and

         20  they say, well, I do not want to do that one?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Then we

         22  would look to offer that property to somebody else

         23  on our pre- qualified list.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Do they

         25  get penalized, do they get kicked out of the
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          2  program, or then you work to offer them another

          3  site?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  No.

          5  Generally speaking it's not like we have the ability

          6  to say, okay, you don't like that one, how about

          7  this one.  Generally speaking, we're putting a

          8  package together at one time, if a developer for

          9  whatever reason says I'm not interested in this

         10  property, that is pretty much the end of it, we find

         11  a new developer to take it and move on.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         13  Now I'm not sure if you responded to this to my

         14  colleague, but, what criteria do you use to

         15  determine if the property will be assigned to a for-

         16  profit or not- for- profit?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well the

         18  first level is if there has been a tenant petition,

         19  because we have put in place a mechanism in the

         20  program where the tenant can express their interest

         21  in taking title to the property with the help of a

         22  not for- profit.  And in this round, we actually

         23  honored - -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  What

         25  would be the example of a not- for- profit?  Again,
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          2  this kind of thing I don't think is going on in my

          3  district, so I'm a little - -

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  In the

          5  round that we're working on now, the Manhattan

          6  Valley Development Corporation, a joint venture

          7  between the Settlement Housing Fund and the Urban

          8  Homesteading Assistance Board, the South Bronx

          9  Economic Development Organization, SOBRO, were all

         10  selected by tenants to be their sponsor on a Tenant

         11  Petition Property, and we have honored those Tenant

         12  Petitions and will convey the not- for- profit with

         13  the content of them converting into a co- op.  So

         14  that is sort of the first level.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay, and

         16  that is the ultimate goal is to convert into a co-

         17  op.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  If the

         19  tenants so choose and have expressed it during the

         20  process with us.  They have a time in which they are

         21  able to put that together.

         22                 And then the second piece is really

         23  to look at a cluster and what is comprised in the

         24  cluster of whether it's brownstones for

         25  homeownership, whether it is large, multi- family
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          2  buildings, if there is an opportunity for more

          3  private equity to go in and that way keep our

          4  investment down.  Those are all the kind of things

          5  that go into this process.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  I guess I

          7  have a problem with associating a not- for- profit

          8  with this kind of venture, because it is almost a

          9  noxy moron, why are you investing all this money and

         10  doing all this stuff, and it's a not- for- profit,

         11  you know?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well the

         13  expectation is that, you know, we're encouraging

         14  tenant ownership where people have expressed that

         15  they're willing and capable to do it and that is one

         16  of the benefits of the program, we think.  It's a

         17  good mix to try to get that in as much as possible.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Just one

         19  last question, what constraints or limitations exist

         20  to prevent HPD from reassigning a building to a

         21  different developer, after the Council's time to

         22  disapprove a transfer has expired?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         24  actually, yes, if there is a change in the developer

         25  after the Council has already reviewed and approved
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          2  the package, we would submit a letter to the Council

          3  informing them that a change has been made.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay,

          5  thank you very much.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member

          8  Michels.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, it's

         10  the Committee's understanding that a Third Party

         11  Developer must pay all the money due the City real

         12  property taxes, water and sewer charges, and

         13  building related violations, other than the two most

         14  recent quarters of real property taxes, water and

         15  sewer charges on its residential properties.  Now

         16  I'm not just talking of the property, I'm talking

         17  about the properties he owned.  At what point in the

         18  process on getting a Third Party Transfer does these

         19  arrears have to be paid?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well, we

         21  encourage all of our pre- qualified sponsors to

         22  become current in charges and to, if there are any

         23  outstanding issues related to J- 51 or any kind of

         24  disputes with the Department of Environmental

         25  Protection to resolve them as soon as possible, and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  we will make a final effort to do that prior to the

          3  transfer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  They do not

          5  get approved as a Third Party Transfer actually get

          6  a building the Third Party Process unless they paid

          7  up all of their arrears and everything they owe;

          8  don't they?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Either

         10  paid or explained what the outstanding dispute is.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So if they

         12  have a legitimate dispute, then you're not going to

         13  make them pay.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         15  right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But if they

         17  don't, they have to pay everything up.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And what

         20  about existing violations, by issue by you as the

         21  Department of Buildings?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  We would

         23  expect them to address any violations that they

         24  have.  Certainly, - -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Shouldn't
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          2  they all be cleared up before they're allowed to

          3  participate in the Third Party Transfer?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well, we

          5  would expect people to make every effort to clear

          6  any violations that they have.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  What does

          8  that mean, do they have to do it or don't they?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well,

         10  they have to do it.  If there are explanations of

         11  why there are existing violations, if a building is

         12  undergoing renovation, it's common --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  In other

         14  words, even if they, they still have the violation,

         15  but they're in a period where they're clearing up

         16  the violation.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         18  right.  The idea, it is hard to speak in

         19  generalities like this only because every individual

         20  developer, if they have acquired a property from us

         21  through one of our disposition programs and it's

         22  under renovation right now, on record, there may be

         23  1,000 violations from 20 years ago, they're going to

         24  get clear up in the course of the renovation, but

         25  they're on record at the time.  So the idea is that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  people explain what the situation is, if it is a

          3  situation where the violations are on record, they

          4  should be cleared up.  If part of clearing that up

          5  is completing a renovation or doing something

          6  similar, we would do that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  We certainly

          8  see that violations have to be addressed.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And it would

         11  seem to me that, you know, the whole idea is to get

         12  this property into the hands of somebody who is

         13  going to make sure is going to maintain the

         14  property, pay the taxes, and not be somebody who we

         15  would be ashamed of giving it to.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:

         17  Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Because that

         19  is important.

         20                 Do you do an investigation to

         21  determine if the developer has been involved in a

         22  litigation with respect of the physical condition of

         23  residential properties who owns or manages,

         24  especially of course when you guys, HPD, when you

         25  guys are actually a party, - -
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: - -  or any

          4  other litigation that in any way can be attributable

          5  to, it may give you an idea of what kind of

          6  characters they are, do you do a litigation check on

          7  the individuals involved?  I don't mean the

          8  corporation, because you can change corporations

          9  like you can change clothes.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  We do a

         11  litigation check of HPD's litigation history with

         12  the individual.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  What about

         14  any other litigation?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  We do

         16  not routinely do that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But if

         18  someone comes to you and says, look, there is a

         19  problem here, you know, you may give them this

         20  property, the next thing I know there will be a

         21  judgement against them, they will lose the property.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Of

         23  course we would look into anything like that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But there

         25  are ways of checking that.  Isn't there a Central,
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          2  some sort of checking, whereby, you as a Corporation

          3  Counsel, as to whether the individuals are involved

          4  in litigation?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  There

          6  may be, Council member, I'm not really familiar with

          7  it, I don't know.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Do you check

          9  Vendex?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes, we

         11  do.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And that is

         13  part of your routine to make sure it's done?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Excuse me.

         16  We're talking about properties that owned by the

         17  individual no matter where they are, either owned

         18  individually or as a partnership or part of a

         19  corporation, so you're able to check that.  And you

         20  ask them to sign some sort of a statement making a

         21  representation that there are no outstanding or some

         22  explanation, do you get an idea that if he is lying

         23  to you, you know you have some recourse?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.  As

         25  part of our submission for the RFQ the developers
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          2  submit a statement explaining that there is no

          3  tenant harassment, arson, mortgage foreclosure, you

          4  know, any of those kind of issues related to

          5  property.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Do they also

          7  have to list all the buildings which they own or in

          8  partnership or a corporate stockholder or anything

          9  like that, I mean, talking about privately owned

         10  corporation?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So you're

         13  able to check on that.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  That is

         15  right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And that is

         17  the whole idea, I guess, is to have this pool of

         18  people to participate so that you can check on them

         19  before you let them out.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Exactly.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You don't

         22  have a last minute type of situation.

         23                 Now what measure does the Department

         24  take to ensure that an owner of a building who

         25  mismanaged the building so badly it became
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          2  distressed does not get the building back to a

          3  complex ownership structure or Third Party

          4  Developer?  In other words, if somebody wants to

          5  redeem the property, - -

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: - -  who has

          8  a bad reputation, who allowed it to become a

          9  distressed property, or, what do you do that he

         10  doesn't come back through some sort of a rouse and

         11  complex ownership structure and the Third Party

         12  Developer?  In other words, we want to keep this

         13  person away from a Third Party Developer, but the

         14  Third Party Developer doesn't have to be an

         15  individual, it could be a corporation, it could be a

         16  partnership.  How do we make sure that the

         17  individual who caused the property in the state that

         18  it is in the first place is not able to come back

         19  as, forgiveness of the taxes and everything else?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Right.

         21  It would be a fairly difficult rouse to pull off.

         22  Only because, if I can just explain for a minute?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, sure.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  As

         25  Deputy Commissioner Hardy mentioned, we did two
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          2  RFQs, one in 1998 and one in 2000. They're not

          3  building specific.  I think it would require a

          4  tremendous amount of forethought, luck and sort of

          5  complex meandering to try to actually - -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You have a

          7  system in place to do some research and check these

          8  people out?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Yes,

         10  absolutely, absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I'm not

         12  saying go as far as the ABC Board does when they

         13  want to even know where the source of the money is,

         14  you know.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN: Yes, no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Which

         17  they're going to be using, but it should be done.

         18  And look, and mistakes are made and things happen,

         19  but at least if it is known that there is going to

         20  be such scrutinization that you're not going to let

         21  them, then some of them would be inhibited of trying

         22  to pull that rouse off.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN: That is

         24  right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Okay, thank
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          2  you.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member

          4  Perkins, last person, last member that wants to ask

          5  you a question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

          7  very much.  I realize that to some extent we're

          8  treading on new territory, unknown waters, and so

          9  some of the concerns that I have and some of the

         10  questions, you may not be as well prepared as you

         11  would like or as we would like, and so I want to

         12  make sure that there is an understanding about that,

         13  especially when we start talking about this co- op

         14  arrangement.  Because I know that there are some

         15  concerns that are raised related to, for instance,

         16  the standards that are going to be used for transfer

         17  to occur for the tenants to a co- op.  And I was

         18  wondering, since we begun this discussions, have you

         19  had time to look at that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  In terms

         21  of on individual properties?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes, what

         23  standards are we going to use when these transfers

         24  start to take place?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well I
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          2  don't think we have gone into, we have had the time

          3  to go into specifics about how it would work on the

          4  individual properties.  It is going to depend on the

          5  financing and it is going to depend on how

          6  significant the renovation is that is required to do

          7  each individual property.  But we're happy to engage

          8  in discussions with the Council and also with the

          9  tenant associations and the not- for- profits on

         10  specifics.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  In that

         12  regard, like is there an oversight process that

         13  we're looking at, or is that something that we need

         14  to talk about some more, where are we at with that,

         15  sort of an oversight of this whole co- op process,

         16  similar, I guess to some extent that you might have

         17  been providing with regard to TIL?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Well the

         19  buildings are going to be transferred to

         20  Neighborhood Restorer, which is a holding company

         21  who will work with the developers and the tenants

         22  over the next, you know, few months getting the

         23  financing and the rehabilitation package together.

         24  We certainly have our TIL Training Centers available

         25  and actually would very much encourage the tenant
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          2  associations to work with us to avail themselves of

          3  the classes that are there.  And if we need to put

          4  together some special training, we would be happy to

          5  work on that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, well,

          7  we will talk some more.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Because

         10  there is more to it.  The last question, Mr.

         11  Chairman, very, very important.  The next round is

         12  on the horizon and part of the confusion was the

         13  communication to the tenants, it was sort of late

         14  and not, you know, as expeditious as we might like

         15  it.  So can we get that done a lot sooner,

         16  especially for those buildings that intend on going

         17  into this tenant co- op process and have to do that

         18  petitioning of their neighbors, as well as have to

         19  do the identifying of the particular not- for-

         20  profit that is in the pool, that early notice is,

         21  becomes very helpful, and of course, that notice

         22  communicated through to the Council member's office

         23  is even helpful as well?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Final question,

          4  Commissioner Warren, our records indicate that Mr.

          5  Spitzer had some outstanding violations on existing

          6  buildings.  Is that a concern of yours, are you

          7  aware of these outstanding violations?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN: We will

          9  work with him to deal with any of those issues.

         10  We're aware of some, if there is information that

         11  you have for us, we will have them follow- up with

         12  him.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And while A

         14  violations are minor, it could be a lightbulb or it

         15  could be any number of things, but he, our records

         16  show that he did, in fact, falsely certify at 1622

         17  Ocean Avenue in Brooklyn, Ocean Parkway, to a

         18  correction.  So we think that you should be aware of

         19  that, while again, there could be many reasons.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Maybe put the

         22  lightbulb in and someone came along and took it out,

         23  you know.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  We're

         25  happy to follow up.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, we want

          3  to thank you for your testimony.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And we look

          7  forward to moving ahead and resolving the

          8  outstanding differences.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Great.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN:  Thank

         12  you very much.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARDY:  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Oh, we have

         16  some young people from Silver Spring, Maryland.

         17  Silver Spring that is near Washington, D.C., right?

         18  Welcome, welcome.  That is Sligo, what is that,

         19  Sligo Middle School, what is the name of your

         20  school?

         21                 ALL:  Sligo.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right,

         23  welcome to New York.  Hopefully you are enjoying

         24  your vacation.  This is the Housing and Buildings

         25  Committee of the New York City Council, and we're
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          2  taking up very important issues related to housing

          3  and affordable rents and all of those issues.

          4                 So stay as long as you feel

          5  comfortable, stay as long as you want, and I would

          6  hope that you would find your trip informative and

          7  interesting and enjoyable, and always stop in to see

          8  us when you're in New York City, and come again

          9  soon.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 Okay, now we will go to the general

         12  public, I have a list here.  Okay, on the Third

         13  Party Transfer, let me hear then Ann Rocker.  No,

         14  no, no, hold it, excuse me, that is the wrong

         15  number.  Okay, on the Third Party Transfer, Dorothy

         16  Powell, Jordi Reyes- Montblanc.  Okay, come on, take

         17  a seat and Jordi Reyes Montblanc, and Dorothy

         18  Powell, is she here?  Dorothy Powell?

         19                 Okay, sit down, Mr. Montblanc and

         20  identify yourself, it's on the Third Party Transfer.

         21    Right, you're going to, I thought he was, but

         22  you're going to testify later on submetering?

         23                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Yes, Sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right, this

         25  is on the Third Party Transfer.
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          2                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  I'm going to

          3  be brief as possible.  The Third Party Transfer

          4  Program is one that we support generally, the HDFC

          5  Council.

          6                 One of the things that we object to

          7  is the inclusion of HDFC properties in the Third

          8  Party Transfer.  When Local Law 37 was made, HDFCs

          9  were exempted from the tax lien sales, and this was

         10  done at the intervention of some of the Council

         11  members here present.  The intent was to protect

         12  HDFC properties because there were efforts being

         13  made in conjunction of HPD and the HDFCs support

         14  organizations, the Task Force on City- owned

         15  Property and several other organizations from the

         16  Umbrella Group, in working with HPD to come up with

         17  some legislation that would give relief to the HDFCs

         18  that were financially distressed.

         19                 The inclusion of HDFCs in the Third

         20  Party Transfer at this juncture is contrary to that

         21  intent.  The HPD has been very good in working with

         22  us in developing legislation.  Unfortunately, for

         23  the last few months they have been swamped by other

         24  priorities, and this relief legislation that was

         25  going to be presented to Council over a year ago,
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          2  has not yet been presented.

          3                 So on that basis we object to any

          4  HFDCs being Third Party Transfer, because it is

          5  premature, the debts in most of these buildings can

          6  be traced back to the period that those buildings

          7  were in City- ownership, because those buildings did

          8  receive very little or no rehabilitation, which

          9  caused the tenants, in most instances, having to

         10  decide to whether have a roof over their head or pay

         11  taxes or water.

         12                 And this set of circumstances is such

         13  that it is inequity, a suppression of inequity

         14  because since 1995 TIL buildings are totally rehabed

         15  before they're sold to the tenants. But prior to

         16  1995 on the older, the HDFC covenant to it is, the

         17  less rehabs that they received and are none.

         18                 So on that basis we present our

         19  objections of the transfer of any HDFCs at this

         20  time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, Mr.

         22  Montblanc, we want to thank you for bringing your

         23  point of views to our attention. Ms. Moore (sic), a

         24  similar point of view you want to make?

         25                 MS. POWELL:  Well, my name is Dorothy
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          2  Powell.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Oh, Powell.

          4                 MS. POWELL:  I'm one of the

          5  shareholders at 320 Saint Nicholas, one of the

          6  houses that is going to the Third Party Transfer.

          7                 Basically, what I am here to say is

          8  that when we found out about the Third Party

          9  Transfer, it was rather late.  And when we found

         10  out, I found out by mistake on the computer it

         11  happened to come up our building.  We went to

         12  management, at the time we had different people

         13  managing, we went to them, that is when we found out

         14  the whole story.

         15                 Since that time, since July, we, the

         16  shareholders of 320 have all pulled together, we

         17  realize that we do owe back taxes, but we asked, Mr.

         18  Warren, when we met with him, to give us some time,

         19  we gave them a business plan in which we would be

         20  able to pay our taxes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right, Ms.

         22  Powell?

         23                 MS. POWELL:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member

         25  Perkins will meet you at the conclusion of this
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          2  meeting and be happy to discuss this matter with you

          3  and try to be helpful.

          4                 MS. POWELL:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member

          6  Michels.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Mr.

          8  Montblanc, as you know, the HDFCs have been exempted

          9  from the tax lien sale if they're considered a

         10  distressed properties.  And we know what the reasons

         11  are that you have problems with it is, because you

         12  never got the tax exemptions and that we now give to

         13  HDFCs when we put them in the HDFC Program.

         14                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  That is

         15  correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You know

         17  we're working on that and I can tell you that I have

         18  had some recent conversations with the Commissioner

         19  of Finance on that issue and that is something that

         20  you and I have met and talked about.

         21                 But as I understand it, you're not

         22  subject to a tax lien sale, you're not subject to

         23  being taken over by a Third Party Transfer.  Its

         24  those buildings which have defaulted on their tax

         25  liens, are the ones going into the Third Party
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          2  Transfer.  I wasn't aware that HDFCs, maybe I'm

          3  wrong and maybe I have got to find out more about

          4  it, I thought that HDFCs were not subject to Third

          5  Party Transfers.

          6                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Unfortunately,

          7  320 Saint Nicholas is one of them, and there were,

          8  at least, 13 or 14 buildings in this particular

          9  group.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But don't

         11  they - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  We will

         13  investigate that and determine whether - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Your

         15  understanding is that even though they're not

         16  subject to the tax lien, they can still be part of

         17  the Third Party Transfer?

         18                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Yes, Sir, that

         19  is exactly what is happening, and that is exactly

         20  what we're objecting to.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Well, thank

         22  you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Excuse me, are

         24  there not, we will check it out.  Thank you for

         25  coming in.  Council Member Perkins will be happy to
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          2  discuss it with you.

          3                 Okay, Claude is here, on the roll

          4  call on the seven disapprovals, Preconsidered.  Call

          5  the roll, please?  This is on the disapproval for

          6  the six Preconsidered, seven Preconsidered

          7  properties, Preconsidered Bills.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Okay, Spigner.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Michels.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Malave- Dilan.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE- DILAN:  Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Provenzano.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Nelson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Ognibene.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Can I be

         20  excused to explain my vote?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Yes, Council

         22  Member.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Thank you

         24  very much, Mr. Chairman.  And with all due respect

         25  to my good colleagues who worked very diligently and
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          2  zealously for their communities, Council Member

          3  Perkins and Michels.  I happen to think that the

          4  Third Party Transfer Program is an excellent

          5  program, which has been working very well.  And it

          6  offers a tremendous opportunity for those who are in

          7  arrears, or those who are having difficulties to

          8  have a work out with the City in order to alleviate

          9  the impacts of a for sale by the City.  And I would

         10  like to think that some of the unique properties,

         11  like the sum that we're dealing with today, could be

         12  handled in a more administrative matter, but I'm a

         13  little bit concerned about the fact that we're doing

         14  this through legislation and it is going to open up

         15  the door for more of these.  And I don't know that,

         16  it is the type of program that we want to get into

         17  this kind of a power struggle with the Executive

         18  Branch by doing this through legislation.

         19                 So I'm hoping that matters can be

         20  done in an Administrative fashion rather than a

         21  legislative fashion, and accordingly I will vote no.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Continue the

         23  roll call.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  By a vote of

         25   --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, we're

          3  going to leave the roll call open, Council Member

          4  Marshall is on her way from another meeting.

          5                 So now we go into the testimony from

          6  the public.

          7                 Do you want to announce the vote,

          8  Claude?

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Sure.  The

         10  vote is 5 in the affirmative, one in the negative,

         11  with no abstentions to approve the disapproval.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So the motion

         13  is passed, but we're keeping it open.  Make your

         14  comment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes, Sir, I

         16  just want to make a quick comment in appreciation to

         17  my colleagues for their support, and to, again,

         18  since HPD is, well, not here, but I see

         19  representatives of the Administration is here, to

         20  urge them to please get to the individual

         21  organizations to finalize the arrangements with

         22  regard to our Memorandum of Understanding as far as

         23  the tenant co- op arrangements that we talked about.

         24                 And, again, I want to thank staff for

         25  their support, including the CLO in helping us
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          2  through this process.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  On 836

          5  we want to hear Thomas Manley, James McGowan, and

          6  Jack McDonnell, are you here, gentlemen?

          7                 MR. MANLEY:  Jack McDonnell is not

          8  here, Jack McDonnell had to leave.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Sir, identify

         10  yourself for the record and you may proceed.

         11                 MR. MCGOWAN:  Okay, from the

         12  Uniformed Fire Officers, I'm Lieutenant James

         13  McGowan.

         14                 Chairman Spigner, ladies and

         15  gentlemen of the City Council, thank you for the

         16  opportunity to speak here this morning. The

         17  Uniformed Fire Officers Association is in support of

         18  the proposed legislation Intro. 836 by Councilman

         19  James Oddo from the 50th Council District.  This law

         20  would ensure that families will never again be

         21  placed in housing that does not comply with Fire

         22  Prevention, Building, Electrical, or Housing and

         23  Maintenance Codes, and also prohibit the placement

         24  of any individual or family in need into a swelling

         25  lacking a valid Certificate of Occupancy.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Children and their families in

          3  programs such as the Emergency Assistance

          4  Residential Placement, EARP, have been placed in

          5  these dangerous living conditions that lack the

          6  proper requirements of law and where the constant

          7  potential for fire and building collapse exists.

          8  Not only are the lives of families threatened, but

          9  also the lives of New York City Firefighters who

         10  respond to one of these locations.

         11                 The safety of the public and our

         12  firefighters is our highest priority.  To put

         13  families in these homes without the proper

         14  inspections jeopardizes their lives as well as

         15  firefighters in the event of a fire.

         16                 The Fire Department Fire Prevention

         17  Manual Chapter 11, Section 11.1 states, "Our

         18  statistics and our experience tell us that,

         19  annually, fires in private dwellings and in living

         20  spaces of multiple dwellings result in the largest

         21  number of lives lost." The Fire Department normally

         22  does not inspect private dwellings. Without an

         23  inspection of these homes the Fire Department cannot

         24  determine the extent of violations in the home such

         25  as open beams, holes in the ceiling and floors,
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          2  inadequate electrical codes, or no secondary means

          3  of egress from the inside.  When a fire starts in

          4  one of these homes, the potential for fire exposure

          5  in other structures nearby is accelerated due to the

          6  nature of a fast moving fire.  Without these

          7  inspections, we cannot file the proper information

          8  to let the other fire companies responding know what

          9  is inside.

         10                 In conclusion, saving lives whether

         11  through firefighting or fire safety education is the

         12  most important service we provide to the citizens of

         13  this city.  Placing families or individuals into

         14  these homes after a valid certificate of occupancy

         15  is granted, will decrease the potential for a

         16  catastrophe to people living in the homes as well as

         17  the firefighters who respond.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. McGowan?

         20                 MR. MCGOWAN:  Yes, Sir.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you for

         22  your testimony and give our regards to your

         23  President, what is his name?

         24                 MR. MCGOWAN:  Peter Gorman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Our best to Mr.
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          2  Gorman and the members and officers of that

          3  organization.

          4                 MR. MCGOWAN:  I certainly will, thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Your testimony

          7  is greatly appreciated.

          8                 MR. MCGOWAN:  Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  We appreciate

         10  the work that you all do on behalf of the City of

         11  New York.

         12                 MR. MCGOWAN:  We appreciate, thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. Manley,

         15  would you proceed, Sir.

         16                 MR. MANLEY:  My name is Thomas

         17  Manley, I'm Sergeant At- Arms for Uniformed

         18  Firefighters Association.

         19                 Good morning.  Thank you for allowing

         20  me this opportunity to address the City Council in

         21  support of Intro. 836. My name is Thomas Manley and

         22  I am the Sergeant- At- Arms for the Uniformed

         23  Firefighters Association.  I have the responsibility

         24  of protecting the safety and health of more than

         25  9,000 New York City Firefighters.  I have been a
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          2  resident of Midland Beach section of Staten Island

          3  for the last 16 years.

          4                 During the past five years, I am

          5  pleased to say that there has been a considerable

          6  turnaround in Midland Beach with many new private,

          7  one- family dwellings being erected.  However, at

          8  the same time, a very serious fire and health hazard

          9  has arisen because the owners of one- family

         10  bungalows have been illegally converting them into

         11  multiple dwellings.  Often a building designed for

         12  one family is modified to accommodate two or three

         13  families.  There are no permits for the alteration

         14  work and no Certificate of Occupancy issued because

         15  the alterations are unlawful.

         16                 The owners of these converted

         17  bungalows are motivated by greed.  Unfortunately,

         18  the City of New York, through Section 8 vouchers,

         19  public assistance and halfway housing, have provided

         20  an incentive to these owners by filling these

         21  illegally converted dwellings with participants in

         22  the above- noted programs. The owners do not care

         23  about the potential loss of life or serious injury

         24  to these tenants.  Moreover, they do not care about

         25  the risks these units present to firefighters who
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          2  enter the premises attempting to protect the lives

          3  and property of the occupants.  I know from personal

          4  experience that when a firefighter enters an

          5  illegally altered dwelling it I like entering a

          6  maze.  There are walls in places where no wall

          7  should be.  Fire stops has been removed allowing the

          8  dangerously rapid spread of fire and making the job

          9  even more hazardous.  Factor in two or three

         10  families where you expect only one, and the hazards

         11  are intensified dramatically. Furthermore, illegal

         12  alterations often present risk of potential collapse

         13  even under minimal fire conditions.  The tenants of

         14  these illegal conversions often have no choice, but

         15  you wonder why anyone would live in this treacherous

         16  environment.

         17                 It is our hope that this legislation

         18  will remove the profit motive behind these illegal

         19  conversions and help eliminate the safety hazards

         20  they represent.

         21                 The Uniformed Firefighters

         22  Association fully supports the proposed bill.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Mr.

         25  Manley.  Your President, Mr. Gorman, and the
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          2  officers of your organizations are to be commended

          3  for the time and research put into your testimony.

          4  And you can be sure that as we proceed on this issue

          5  your views and concerns will be given every

          6  consideration.

          7                 Thank you for coming.

          8                 MR. MANLEY:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, on 836,

         10  Vanitha Venugopal, you will have to give me a course

         11  on the pronunciation, I hate to mispronunciate (sic)

         12  someone's name.  Would you pronounce it clearly for

         13  me, Ma'am?  So she is the representative of the

         14  Queens Borough President.

         15                 Please identify yourself?

         16                 MS. VENUGOPAL:  Yes, good afternoon,

         17  my name is Vaitha Venugopal.  I'm the Director of

         18  Housing for the Queens Borough President.  And along

         19  with me is our Counsel, Hugh Weinberg.

         20                 I want to thank Council members.  I'm

         21  presenting testimony on behalf of the Borough

         22  President, Claire Schulman, and she says:

         23                  "I want to thank Councilman Spigner

         24  and the Committee for holding this hearing and for

         25  allowing me to speak in support of Intro. 836.
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          2                 I am delighted to be sponsoring this

          3  bill with my colleague Borough President Guy

          4  Molinari.  The purpose of Intro. 836 is simple, to

          5  ensure that Section 8, landlords are in compliance

          6  with Local Building and Housing Related Codes prior

          7  to placement of residents.

          8                 This good government legislation will

          9  help to assure that Section 8 recipients have access

         10  to housing, which does not have unsafe wiring,

         11  illegal units, structural deficiencies, fire and

         12  other hazards.

         13                 We became aware of the plight of

         14  Section 8 families and individuals in the Summer of

         15  1997, when we received complaints from members of my

         16  Illegal Apartment Conversion Task Force and from

         17  Queens Community Board #14, of our tenants living in

         18  illegal units while receiving government subsidies.

         19  Their concern was that hundreds of individuals and

         20  families were being placed in illegal SROs and

         21  converted properties because of the incentive

         22  offered to landlords to participate in the Emergency

         23  Assistance Rehousing Program, also known as EARP.

         24  They wanted to know why taxpayers' dollars were

         25  being provided to landlords who create illegal
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          2  living units and why City agencies were not

          3  screening and approving landlords before tenants

          4  were placed in the unsafe and illegal units, as they

          5  are required to do.

          6                 To obtain answers to these valid

          7  questions, we convened a meeting of all relevant

          8  housing and social service agencies.

          9  Representatives from the Department of Buildings,

         10  Housing Preservation and Development, the Human

         11  Resources Administration, the Department of Homeless

         12  Services, the Mayor's Office, Corporation Counsel

         13  and the Dependent of Finance attended the meeting.

         14                 At the meeting it became clear that

         15  the concerns of the community groups were justified.

         16    There was no coordination between the agencies,

         17  and each agency used different standards/guidelines

         18  for inspections.  For example, NYCHA must certify

         19  landlords who participate in the Section 8 Program

         20  and inspect the proposed residence for the tenant.

         21  NYCHA's inspection, however, is simply to determine

         22  whether or not the unit meets the standards of

         23  habitability.  NYCHA does not the unit meets the

         24  standards of habitability.  NYCHA does not check the

         25  building's Certificate of Occupancy, or check to see
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          2  if there are illegal units in the building, or

          3  determine whether or not the landlord has

          4  outstanding Building Code violations.

          5                 Similarly, under the EARP Program,

          6  landlords receive a bonus when they accept a

          7  referral from HPD and DHS.  Again, neither HPD nor

          8  DHS cross- check its list of participating landlords

          9  against the Department of Building's records to

         10  determine whether the landlords have unpaid Building

         11  Code violations or fines.  Also, HRA makes shelter

         12  allowance payments directly to landlords on behalf

         13  of clients receiving public assistance, but, again,

         14  no effort is made to ensure that there is full

         15  compliance with the Building Code for all of the

         16  landlord's apartments.

         17                 There is a clear lack of inter-

         18  agency coordination on this issue, which is why a

         19  uniform procedure for determining compliance with

         20  City Building, Environmental, Health and other Codes

         21  prior to placement of Section 8 tenants is

         22  necessary.

         23                 While agencies have previously

         24  attempted to remedy the pre- placement review

         25  procedure problems, the changes to date have been
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          2  incremental.  Intro. 836 aims at establishing a

          3  baseline standard for all applicable pre- placement

          4  reviews for Section 8 placements, thereby,

          5  mitigating the chances for Section 8 placement

          6  running afoul of local laws.

          7                 By setting this uniform standard, the

          8  opportunities for unscrupulous landlords and real

          9  estate brokers who seek to take advantage of the

         10  City's inconsistent Section 8 policies, as well as

         11  the individuals and families who are supposed to

         12  benefit from these policies, will be greatly

         13  diminished.

         14                 Intro. 836 will not only help ensure

         15  that public funds are spent responsibly, but also

         16  help protect the right to safe and habitable shelter

         17  for all Section 8 tenants."

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Counselor, do

         20  you anything to add to this?

         21                 MR. WEINBERG:  No, I think she said

         22  it pretty well.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well our best

         24  to the Borough President, and thank you for your

         25  testimony.
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          2                 Council Member Oddo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Mr. Chair, if I

          4  may just one thing?  I just want to ask if you would

          5  bring my good wishes and thanks to the Borough

          6  President for all of her support and making her

          7  staff so available.

          8                 I just want to touch on two things

          9  very quickly. One is the reference to the New York

         10  City Housing Authority.  And I think it is a point

         11  well taken.  I actually was in a meeting with the

         12  representative from the Housing Authority, and

         13  essentially, not even essentially, what he said to

         14  me was they check to see if there are four walls and

         15  a roof, and if so, the people get placed in there.

         16                 And it is amazing to me that in this

         17  day of age, in the year 2001, we cannot have one

         18  City agency interacting with another to checking to

         19  see if in fact the individuals who we're providing

         20  this money to have outstanding violations.

         21                 And lastly, the point made by you and

         22  the previous witness the thing that is driving this

         23  is, in fact, money, is, in fact, greed, and there is

         24  an absolute disregard on the part of some, not all

         25  landlords, some landlords who participate in this
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          2  program.

          3                 So I look forward to working and to

          4  continue to work with the Borough President and your

          5  office to craft a bill that is acceptable by all

          6  parties to address these issues.

          7                 So thank you.

          8                 MS. VENUGOPAL:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right then.

         10    Mr. Weinberg, do you want to identify yourself?

         11                 MR. WEINBERG:  Hugh Weinberg, I'm

         12  Counsel to Queens Borough President, Claire

         13  Schulman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right thank

         15  both of you for coming.  Mr. Edward Korman on 836.

         16  He is with Small Property Owners.  Mr. Korman, if

         17  you would identify yourself, for the record, we

         18  would be pleased to hear your testimony?

         19                 MR. KORMAN:  My name is Edward

         20  Korman.  I am the Executive Vice- President of the

         21  Small Property Owners of New York. Mr. Chairman,

         22  members of the Council, I want to thank you for

         23  giving us the opportunity to speak here.

         24                 The testimony that I passed out is

         25  going to be changed a little bit of what I have
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          2  heard today.  My testimony is based on the written

          3  Intro. Rather than the Staten Island issues by Mr.

          4  Oddo.

          5                 The Small Property Owners of New York

          6  oppose Intro. 836, which will cause hardship on

          7  small owners that survive having existing Section 8

          8  tenants.

          9                 In response to the Fire Department

         10  for houses not being inspected, any house that is

         11  over four families is inspected regularly by the

         12  Fire Department and we can show justification for

         13  that, Mr. Oddo.  I think your bill is basically

         14  referring to one, two and three- family houses that

         15  have no jurisdiction by any Fire Department or

         16  Housing Preservation and Development.

         17                 As for EARP and NYCHA, when they come

         18  to a house, they don't look at four walls, they take

         19  somebody's heart out before they will let somebody

         20  come in.  You are investigated prior to getting an

         21  EARP tenant to see that all your taxes and all your

         22  outstanding bills are paid and up- to- date.

         23                 What I wrote for you, Mr. Oddo, my

         24  testimony is a little bit different, it is something

         25  that has to be looked at the City Council in
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          2  reference to the NYCHA.  If an existing Section 8

          3  tenant wants to move because the family has grown,

          4  because of insufficient stock of Section 8

          5  apartments, they will have to remain in existing

          6  apartments for as long as one, two possible years in

          7  quarters which will cost the all ready burdensome

          8  lifestyle of doubling up of families.  The doubling

          9  up creates a financial burden on owners because of

         10  increased water costs, fuel for hot water, and abuse

         11  by families that really don't belong in the

         12  apartments.  The tenants that want to relocate will

         13  cause as much damage that is physically possible to

         14  a property in order for the Housing Quality

         15  Standards to decrease in which you're referring to,

         16  therefore, suspending rents.

         17                 In a small property when a tenant

         18  finally moves with no rent for a year and the

         19  apartment and parts of the building that have to be

         20  restored, there is no money to get it back to the

         21  Housing Quality Standards, much less remove the

         22  violations that in some cases are petty, not life-

         23  threatening and admonishing the stock of the

         24  housing.

         25                 Presently, there is a shortage of
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          2  Section 8 apartments available in the City.  If this

          3  law is passed, the supply will diminish even further

          4  and their will be many families left homeless.  This

          5  law will also hurt owners that have Section 8 A

          6  loans because they are required to give apartments

          7  as an agreement to Section 8 tenants.

          8                 The following is a list for the

          9  members of the Council's review of already

         10  burdensome effects of Section 8's on properties,

         11  which should be addressed before any new burdens

         12  should be done:

         13                 As for illegal properties, they

         14  should be addressed on an individual basis, not to

         15  their legality as the habitable structure.

         16                 Violations, as referred to by you and

         17  the Fire Department, do not deem a property illegal,

         18  in reference to the Staten Island issue.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Mr.

         21  Korman.  Mr. Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes, may I just

         23  say one thing?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  What I'm

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  referring to, and I think a lot of my colleagues who

          3  signed onto the bill are referring to, they're not

          4  four- family residences, in fact, a lot of them are

          5  one- family, a lot of them in my district were

          6  bungalows that have been illegally converted.  And

          7  the problem that we're trying to address is that

          8  there is a vicious cycle.

          9                 The landlord, and again, and I

         10  quantified my statement in saying some, certainly

         11  not all, a lot of these folks happen to be absentee

         12  landlords.  But what they do, is they go to the City

         13  of New York and they get a very, very dependable

         14  check every month, the check is never late and the

         15  check never bounces. They take that money and they

         16  go out and acquire other locations, and there is a

         17  vicious cycle, and in effect the City is enabling

         18  this process.  And what happens is, not only are the

         19  individuals placed in jeopardy, but there is people

         20  who are private homeowners who live adjacent to

         21  these structures who are in jeopardy, because should

         22  that structure go on fire, that person lives in my

         23  community, a hop, skip and a jump away.  The third

         24  universe of folks, as I mentioned earlier, are the

         25  firefighters who have to go.
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          2                 So I understand your concerns and I

          3  understand you as a reputable landlord have

          4  difficulty with this Section 8 Program as it is.  My

          5  concern is the gentleman or the lady, and I use

          6  those terms loosely, who don't live and don't care

          7  about these structures and all they're interested is

          8  in that monthly check.

          9                 And getting back to the inspection, I

         10  have met with countless agencies trying to figure

         11  out which agencies administer which program and

         12  which agency is responsible for doing the

         13  inspection.  I think the Department of Homeless

         14  Services does a lot of what we're asking for in this

         15  bill already.  But, again, I repeat this story, and

         16  the New York City Housing Authority and the

         17  gentleman who works for that company, sitting right

         18  there in the City Legislative Affairs Office,

         19  basically told us that they just look to see if

         20  there are four walls standing and a roof.

         21                 Now your experience might be slightly

         22  different, but there are plenty of locations and

         23  apparently it is the experience of my 20 or 22

         24  colleagues of mine who have signed onto this bill,

         25  that there isn't enough inspection.  And certainly
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          2  all of us can agree, landlord, tenant,

          3  Councilperson, staff that making sure that a

          4  particular building has a valid C of O prior to

          5  placing a person in crisis, is not an onerous thing,

          6  and that is what we're aiming for.

          7                 So, again, admittedly the bill is a

          8  shotgun approach now, we will tailored it down so

          9  that we don't impact reputable landlords, but

         10  certainly there is a problem out there that we need

         11  to address.

         12                 MR. KORMAN:  Well, if I may say,

         13  these small property owners would like to volunteer,

         14  especially I will be there, to meet with you as, I'm

         15  out on the street, so- to- speak, I have properties,

         16  but I have to negotiate for other property owners

         17  that have other problems in relation to Section 8,

         18  building issues and so on, and being out in the

         19  street, I can tell you more than the guy from

         20  Section 8.

         21                 They don't only go in and check the

         22  floor structures, they take your heart out.  If

         23  there is a switchplate missing, and all our

         24  buildings, I come from, my properties are in a real

         25  tough neighborhood, Ridgewood, Bushwick, and I know
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          2  for a fact that all my properties, which is six-

          3  families and up are inspected regularly by the Fire

          4  Department.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  If I may just

          6  close with this, Mr. Chairman, I mean I have a

          7  location in my district that had two vacate orders

          8  from the Building Department.  We vacated the

          9  premises twice.  It was a bungalow that was

         10  converted into an eight- story structure, two vacate

         11  orders, yet they still went to put a Section 8

         12  placement into it.  That to me indicates that there

         13  is a major lack of communication and a major lack, a

         14  major problem.

         15                 MR. KORMAN:  Before I give you an

         16  answer or the City Council an answer, I think I

         17  would like to have a meeting with you, because we do

         18  know the answers, but nobody seems to want to

         19  recognize it.  So I will give you my card, at your

         20  convenience call us, and we will be very happy to

         21  participate.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you,

         25  Council Member. Now moving on, Mary Ann Rothman of
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          2  the Council of New York Cooperatives.  Is she here,

          3  May Ann Rothman?  Take a seat, Ms. Rothman, and

          4  identify yourself, and we will be happy to take your

          5  testimony, please?

          6                 MS. ROTHMAN:  My name is Mary Ann

          7  Rothman.  I am the Executive Director of the Council

          8  of New York Cooperatives and Condominiums, which is

          9  a membership group for housing, co- ops, and

         10  condominiums.  And I'm here to testify in strong

         11  support of Intro. 802, and I have been here all

         12  morning, during which time some colleagues who had

         13  hoped to testify also, and who have submitted

         14  written testimony had to leave because of other

         15  engagements.  So joining me in support of this

         16  Intro. Is Greg Carlson, the Executive Director of

         17  the Federation of New York Housing Cooperatives, and

         18  Ed Yeager (phonetic) of the Coordinating Council of

         19  Co- ops.  Our three organizations, among us, have

         20  dealings with probably 85 percent of all of the co-

         21  ops and condominiums in our City, which are the

         22  homes of very close to half a million families.

         23                 In June of 2000, the Executive Board

         24  of my organization adopted the following resolution:

         25                 The Council of New York Cooperatives
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          2  and Condominiums supports the broadening of J- 51

          3  Property Tax Abatement criteria to include building

          4  improvements designed to reduce energy costs in New

          5  York City, specifically including the master

          6  metering and submetering of directly metered

          7  multifamily buildings and co generation equipment

          8  and facilities.  CNYC also supports J- 51

          9  eligibility for devices designed to reduce

         10  consumption of electricity and reduce demand to the

         11  electric grid, including advanced metering devices

         12  and on site electric generation initiatives.

         13  Existing and emerging technologies which promote the

         14  use of non- fossil fuel energy sources should also

         15  be eligible for J- 51 abatements.

         16                 Our resolution was a little bit

         17  broad, but it certainly encompasses the topic of

         18  Intro. 802.

         19                 Energy Conservation is one of those

         20  difficult issues.  It has been very important to my

         21  organization from its inception, but our members pay

         22  much, much more attention in times of economic

         23  difficulty or in times when energy prices soar.  In

         24  between they kind of sleek through the classes of

         25  energy conservation.  Three years ago, four years
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          2  ago, deregulation of electricity was begun and has

          3  raised enormous questions.  We have to figure out

          4  how to cope with buying our power from different

          5  sources.

          6                 Technology can come to our aid.  As

          7  Intro. 802 astutely notes, a cooperative or

          8  condominium can use master metering to achieve

          9  considerable savings in the cost of electricity.  As

         10  deregulations phases in, energy service companies

         11  will sell us power.  Most of these energy service

         12  companies are really not interested in a tiny

         13  customer in selling electricity to one apartment.

         14  They're not even particularly interested in

         15  supplying the energy to the common areas of a

         16  building, but when a cooperative can master meter

         17  and aggregate all of the power in the building, then

         18  they have some clout and they can go to these energy

         19  service companies, perhaps negotiate a better price,

         20  certainly, negotiate for energy conservation help.

         21  So master metering is a tool, a clear tool for

         22  energy conservation.

         23                 Also, the more sophisticated the

         24  master metering equipment will show you time of day

         25  use of electricity.  This is a fabulous educational
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          2  tool because if everyone comes home a 5:20 p.m.,

          3  flips on the air conditioner, you're going to have a

          4  spike in electric use which governs your bill for

          5  the whole month.  If the building can teach

          6  residents when that happens and get them to flatten

          7  that curve, an enormous amount of dollars can be

          8  saved.

          9                 I'm dismayed and surprised at HPD's

         10  opposition to Intro. 802.  I think it is very, very

         11  short- sighted of a City agency to suggest that if

         12  master metering is implemented and individuals see

         13  that they are saving money on electricity, that

         14  suddenly they will become profitable and buy three

         15  jacuzzi's and 57 toasters, particularly in a co- op,

         16  savings that are effected go right to the people who

         17  own the building and who live there.  So master

         18  metering prepares us to deal better with energy

         19  deregulation, it prepares us to cope with escalating

         20  energy costs, and it certainly is conservation

         21  device.

         22                 I strongly support its passage.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, thank you

         24  very much, Ms. Rothman.  Next we go to - -  question

         25  from, Ms. Rothman?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Very

          3  briefly, HPD testified and they have not quite made

          4  up their minds as to where they're going on this.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well, they have

          6  made their mind, they said this is not a good bill.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Take two

          8  hits to right, they said.

          9                 The questions that were asked,

         10  whether or not this could be an energy conservation,

         11  you seemed to indicate that people would see whether

         12  there is a spike in the electricity and such, that

         13  they would be very careful, and you seem to argue it

         14  is a conservation tool.

         15                 MS. ROTHMAN:  It's a conservation

         16  tool in so many ways.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Because

         18  their argument is then being made that the cost of

         19  electricity goes down because of this, then it is

         20  not a conservation.  Because it's cheaper, people

         21  would use it more if it is cheaper.

         22                 MS. ROTHMAN:  But Stan, you live in a

         23  co- op, do you think you would, I think it is such a

         24  misguided concept.  The people who live in co- ops

         25  are the shareholders, the co- owners of the
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          2  building.  They have to pay money each month for

          3  their share of what happens in the building, and

          4  they also see their bill for electric use.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So the other

          6  argument they give, which I think is subject to the

          7  same as you taught, you just gave, is that the bill

          8  doesn't provide for passing the savings along of the

          9  master metering to the individual apartment

         10  residents.

         11                 MS. ROTHMAN:  That may be true, a co-

         12  op that implements master metering has the right to

         13  continue to charge individuals the full Con Ed rate

         14  and to use the difference, first to pay for the

         15  metering project, but also to pay for, guess what,

         16  other energy conservation measures.  So it is

         17  entirely true that a Board of Directors may choose

         18  not to pass full benefit dollars onto each resident,

         19  but those residents are the owners of the building.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Well in a

         21  co- op situation, but not necessarily in a

         22  condominium situation.  Condominium you own your

         23  individual apartment, and in the co- op you're a

         24  shareholder in the corporation that owns the

         25  buildings.
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          2                 MS. ROTHMAN:  But I think the

          3  structure would be exactly the same, Stanley, but

          4  the condo association - -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I'm was just

          6  wondering if you know the arguments that were being

          7  raised?

          8                 MS. ROTHMAN:  I have heard them for

          9  years and as meters get more and more sophisticated

         10  I think the arguments become less and less sound.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  It would be

         12  good if somebody could write a response to this and

         13  give us some more detail on what your thinking on

         14  this are.

         15                 MS. ROTHMAN:  Perhaps a face- to-

         16  face meeting with HPD.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Whatever you

         18  want, it's up to you.

         19                 MS. ROTHMAN:  Could you facilitate

         20  such a meeting?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I'm sure we

         22  could.  Mr. Chairman, do you think we could

         23  facilitate a meeting between HPD and the Council?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  As we proceed

         25  with this bill, Councilman, we will certainly have
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          2  additional exchanges and conversation with HPD.  HPD

          3  clearly, as it has been stated, in the- -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  It's the

          5  Council of New York Cooperatives and Condominiums

          6  and that was the Council.

          7                 MS. ROTHMAN:  And the other core

          8  group.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well if you see

         10  fit, Mr. Chairman will try to facilitate it, but the

         11  HPD specifically said, it can, in fact, it can be

         12  argued that lower rates increase usage by

         13  encouraging additional operation, so there is a

         14  difference of opinion.

         15                 Ms. Rothman, thank you for your

         16  testimony.

         17                 Now to move to Wilhelm Ronda from the

         18  Bronx Borough President's Office.

         19                 And while you take, we have some

         20  visitors.  We have a group of students from the

         21  Ridgewood/Bushwick Avenue Program, and that is from

         22  Wyckoff Avenue in Brooklyn.  We welcome you,

         23  Ridgewood/Bushwick, welcome.  Hope you're enjoying

         24  your visit today, hope you find it interesting,

         25  informal, informing, informative and that you would
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          2  come often.

          3                 Also we have some visitors from the

          4  Lower East Side High School, that is Cathy Previtt

          5  (phonetic) and Joan Previtt and JB King, welcome.

          6                 And visitors from abroad from

          7  Florida, Max Abrieachio (phonetic) and some other

          8  people, and David Call from New York City, welcome

          9  friends.

         10                 This is a meeting of the Council's

         11  Committee on Housing and Buildings, we're, as you

         12  have probably gathered, we are taking up important

         13  housing matters where we hear from the

         14  Administration that is representing Mayor Giuliani

         15  and persons from the community who would be affected

         16  by our actions here today.

         17                 So thank you for coming and we look

         18  forward to seeing you again when you are in New York

         19  City or in the neighborhood.

         20                 Sir, identify yourself?

         21                 MR. RONDA:  Good morning.  My name is

         22  Wilhelm Ronda.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Engage the mic,

         24  please?

         25                 MR. RONDA:  Good morning.  My name is
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          2  Wilhelm Ronda, and I'm here to read a statement on

          3  behalf of Bronx Borough President, Fernando Ferrer.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Please,

          5  proceed.

          6                 MR. RONDA:  Good morning. I'm pleased

          7  to present this testimony in support of Intro. 802,

          8  which proposes to amend the Administrative Code of

          9  the City of New York in relation to granting J- 51

         10  tax benefits for the installation of submetering

         11  systems in cooperatives and condominiums.  I have

         12  strongly encouraged the Housing Development Fund

         13  Corporation, Council's efforts to expand the J- 51

         14  Program definition to include conversion to master

         15  metered, submetered electrical service.

         16                 The HDFC Council with the support of

         17  the New York State Energy Research and Development

         18  Authority, and the Natural Resource of Defense

         19  Council, has demonstrated that master metered,

         20  submetered electrical systems provide these income

         21  restricted co- op grids apartments with the tools to

         22  significantly improve on energy conservation and

         23  reduce housing operating costs.  Additionally, new

         24  time of use electrical systems provide the benefit

         25  of peak load management, which is not currently
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          2  available under direct- metered installations.  Time

          3  of use meters enable residents to control costs by

          4  using electricity during cheaper, off- peak hours.

          5  Expanding J- 51 to cover this program is very

          6  timely, given the exorbitant costs for electricity

          7  and the anticipated supply shortage confronting New

          8  Yorkers.

          9                 An expanded J- 51 would provide an 80

         10  percent tax abatement for master- metered/submetered

         11  electrical installations, which could cost up to

         12  $40,000, for the typical 30- to 40- unit HDFC

         13  building, depending on the condition of the existing

         14  wiring.  The HDFC Council projects that individual

         15  and public area electric energy costs would drop by

         16  approximately 25 percent, with the payback period of

         17  the system being as short as 18 months.  Intro. 802

         18  gives the City the opportunity to help address both

         19  its present energy concerns and the containment of

         20  operational expenses for its affordable housing

         21  stock.

         22                 Thank you very much for the

         23  opportunity to speak on behalf of this bill.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well,

         25  please, convey our best to the Borough President,
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          2  and we're very pleased that you're here.  It was

          3  good to see you.

          4                 MR. RONDA:  Thank you.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I trust

          6  that you and your family are well.

          7                 MR. RONDA:  Thank you very much.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Have a

          9  good holiday.

         10                 MR. RONDA:  Okay, you too.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Next we

         12  have Richard Girardi, Mr. Girardi.  Unfortunately,

         13  he had to leave, yes, please, tell him we're sorry.

         14  Shirley Anderson with the New York City Department

         15  of Public Service.

         16                 We have Mr. Girardi's testimony,

         17  we're getting it, we're going to get Mr. Girardi's

         18  testimony and we are going to make it matter of

         19  record, it will be part of the record of this

         20  hearing.

         21                 And we have received testimony from

         22  1st Rochdale Cooperative and Federation New York

         23  City Cooperatives, Housing Cooperatives, and both of

         24  them, both of that testimony will be part of the

         25  record, since there will be testimony on it.
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          2                 Nice to see you, Ms. Anderson.

          3                 MS. ANDERSON:  Oh, thank you.  Good

          4  afternoon.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It says

          6  New York State, I'm sorry, I thought, we don't have

          7  a Department of Public Service in New York City,

          8  maybe we should, but we don't.  You're from the

          9  State.

         10                 MS. ANDERSON:  Yes, I'm down here

         11  from Albany today to testify in support of the

         12  proposed amendment to the Administrative Code of the

         13  City of New York in relation to granting J- 51 tax

         14  benefits for the installation of submetering systems

         15  for cooperatives and condominiums.

         16                 To begin I want to tell you - -

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Would

         18  you move the mic a little closer so we can hear your

         19  testimony because it is very important with respect

         20  to energy conservation, which I think is something

         21  you're very much devoted to.

         22                 MS. ANDERSON:  Yes.  There are two

         23  factors in the Public Service Commission's

         24  regulations regarding submetering that the New York

         25  City Council should be aware of when considering
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          2  this legislation.

          3                 First, the Commission's regulations

          4  allow conversions to submetering for apartment

          5  buildings that currently are master- metered, which

          6  is the scope of buildings that the HPD policy covers

          7  today, and also buildings where the housing units

          8  are direct- metered by Con Edison, which is really

          9  the topic of the bill before you today.

         10                 And two, the rules for conversions to

         11  submetering for cooperatives and condominiums are

         12  more lenient than the rules for rental apartment

         13  buildings.  The Commission explained when they

         14  enacted it that the typical tensions between

         15  landlords and tenants are not present because of the

         16  joint ownership responsibility in cooperatives and

         17  condominiums.

         18                 The bill before you today will

         19  harmonize J- 51 tax credits with the existing PSC

         20  regulations on submetering.  And after having

         21  listened to the testimony of the HPD

         22  representatives, I think there is probably a couple

         23  of more pieces of information about the Commission's

         24  submetering regulations that you should be made

         25  aware of.
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          2                 I heard the HPD representative say

          3  that there would be no guarantee of a lower price.

          4  I don't feel that is completely true.  For one, the

          5  Commissioner's regulations specify that under a

          6  submetering situation the occupants can pay no more

          7  than the existing Con Ed SC- 1 rate.  And further,

          8  there are provisions in the regulations that say

          9  that if there is any excess revenue collected by the

         10  Board of Managers of the submetering company, that

         11  they are to be used for energy conservation

         12  projects.  And the buildings that have done this

         13  already, have installed the master meter with

         14  submeters behind them in an originally directly-

         15  metered situation, the bills were reduced for the

         16  occupants in those buildings and you will probably

         17  hear more about that later.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I think

         19  that is very important, if I can interrupt you,

         20  because the message has to be made loud and clear

         21  that it is the position of the agency the State,

         22  which is probably the forefront of energy

         23  conservation, that this legislation will lead to

         24  energy conservation as opposed to the Administration

         25  which seems to have some doubt about it.
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          2                 MS. ANDERSON:  Yes, as a matter of

          3  fact, I think it would lead to more than energy

          4  conservation, and that is a very important point.

          5  Also, passage of this bill is especially timely,

          6  given the current electricity market in which demand

          7  has nearly outstripped supply.  One way customers

          8  can exert some measure of control in such a market

          9  is by participating in price responsive load

         10  programs.  However, these programs only are

         11  effective when customers have sufficient information

         12  about their electricity usage and the electricity

         13  price varies with the cost of generation.

         14                 The market price of electricity

         15  varies by season and time of day reflecting

         16  generating costs that can vary dramatically between

         17  daytime and nighttime, summer and winter.

         18  Practically speaking, however, individuals cannot do

         19  much until they know how much electricity they are

         20  using and when.  Current meters and bills for

         21  residential customers do not impart that

         22  information.  It is available, however, through a

         23  new generation of electric meters that measure usage

         24  in time increments.  Called interval meters, these

         25  products inject a new element into the electricity
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          2  measurement equation- time- which is key to inducing

          3  load shifting or conservation.

          4                 Con Edison, the New York State Energy

          5  and Research Development Authority, the Independent

          6  System Operator, and the Public Service Commission,

          7  either directly or indirectly, are accelerating the

          8  introduction of these interval metering

          9  technologies.  Initially, the emphasis is on

         10  installing interval meters on the largest usage

         11  commercial and industrial customers. However,

         12  conversion of an apartment building that already is

         13  direct metered to a building configured with a

         14  master meter that measures intervals and submeters

         15  serves the same objective.

         16                 The Board of Directors of the

         17  cooperative or condominium receives an electric bill

         18  that measures demand and electricity consumed at

         19  different times of day.  The buildings is able to

         20  participate in the price responsive load program,

         21  and when the bill is split among the cooperators, it

         22  provides the occupants with exactly the right

         23  information on their electricity use and the correct

         24  price signals.

         25                 For the past three years, I have been
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          2  the PSC staff technical advisor to the projects

          3  funded by NYSERDA that were designed to investigate

          4  the technological and institutional issues involved

          5  in promoting lower electric costs through

          6  submetering. Through similar projects we can

          7  sensitize consumers to the issues of demand

          8  management.  Installation of advanced meters is the

          9  critical first step.

         10                 Therefore, the Public Service

         11  Commission is especially interested in this J- 51

         12  proposal because we believe it will provide an

         13  important incentive to multifamily residential

         14  buildings to investigation in interval meters and

         15  thereby enable responsible consumer energy practices

         16  in New York City.

         17                 So I think, in summary, I have

         18  effectively refuted some of the presentation that

         19  the HPD people made to you today, and I strongly

         20  endorse your passage of this bill.

         21                 Are there any questions?

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  No, I

         23  think you pretty much answered the questions, and I

         24  think what we have to do, is, I think we would like

         25  to pass legislation with the cooperation of the
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          2  Administration.  But evidently you're in

          3  juxtaposition.

          4                 MS. ANDERSON:  No, I'm from the

          5  State.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I know

          7  you're from the State, but I think, you are also an

          8  agency which is involved almost entirely in energy

          9  reduction.  And I know there are some other problems

         10  that you're having with the City, in parts of the

         11  City anyway, with respect to the placement of

         12  generators.

         13                 But on this issue, I think, and the

         14  importance of this issue and the importance of not

         15  to have visit us what is happening in California,

         16  the Brown Houses, that we do everything that we can

         17  to conserve electricity, because our population is

         18  growing, but I don't the energy supply is growing in

         19  the same ratio.

         20                 MS. ANDERSON:  Yes, but you also need

         21  to manage the demand, I mean that is where this bill

         22  is going to benefit.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is

         24  the reason for it.

         25                 MS. ANDERSON:  Because it will help
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          2  the 80,000 customers who might be eligible for it to

          3  reduce their demand.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And you

          5  feel certain that is going to happen.  I mean, is

          6  there any empirical examples of this, of when you do

          7  this type of thing that it results in less usage of

          8  electricity?

          9                 MS. ANDERSON:  Yes, there is.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And

         11  where is that?

         12                 MS. ANDERSON:  Mister Montblanc's

         13  building in Manhattan, and I think he is going to

         14  testify, so he can tell you a little more

         15  information about it.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But

         17  outside the City of New York, any cities that do the

         18  submetering that you can show before and after and

         19  the result has been less use of electricity?

         20                 MS. ANDERSON:  Not that I'm aware of,

         21  no.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well if

         23  you could possibly find out for us, you have a huge

         24  research staff, I know, I met some of the people,

         25  and it would be could to be able to show empirically
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          2  that this is going to happen, not just on the

          3  building wide basis, but on more of a community

          4  basis.

          5                 MS. ANDERSON:  I will look into it.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But I

          7  think it is extremely important that you look into

          8  it.  Thank you very much, Ms. Anderson, I appreciate

          9  it.

         10                 Next we have Lewis M. Kwit, EIS.

         11  Jack, did you sign in?  You're not testifying.  Of

         12  course you can sit there, sit with him, you're

         13  together aren't you?

         14                 MR. KWIT:  Jack, you can sit here.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You have

         16  a choice, sit on his right hand or his left hand.

         17  But if you want talk or sit at the table, you have

         18  to sign in.  You can sign in post testimony too.

         19                 MR. KWIT:  Mr. Michels, it is a

         20  pleasure to see you. I would like to thank Speaker

         21  Vallone, of course, for giving us the opportunity to

         22  present to him this issue.  Sometime ago, I know

         23  that I did go on a bit and at the end of the meeting

         24  he said, well, thank you very much, if I want to get

         25  a Master's Degree, I know where to come.  And since
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          2  that time he calls me - -

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well

          4  you're not testifying on a non- important issue.

          5                 MR. KWIT: - -  the professor and I

          6  wanted to give him some background, and we did

          7  prepare a paper on this issue about The Evolution of

          8  Energy Conservation, what it means today, which has

          9  been published in the Strategic Planning for Energy

         10  and the Environment, and I have taken the liberty to

         11  provide copies of that paper, which was published -

         12   -

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well

         14  give it to the Sergeant- At- Arms, we would love to

         15  have it.

         16                 MR. KWIT:  But I promised Barbara

         17  Turkowitz that I would be brief, and I will.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm not

         19  going to ask you the expression - -

         20                 MR. KWIT: You can ask me any

         21  questions that you want.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - - that

         23  you're an expert.  Is the problem with California is

         24  the result of lack of energy or big corporations

         25  want to take advantage of the situation?
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          2                 MR. KWIT:  Probably a combination of

          3  both.  But I think the point that is germane here

          4  today, and one of the things that the California

          5  people do recognize is that you need to empower the

          6  people to reduce the demand because they have plenty

          7  of power most of the time.  It is just that during

          8  these peaks that they don't have the power.  And of

          9  course California got hit with a lot of other

         10  problems, as you know, a shortage of hydro- power up

         11  north and also greedy electric companies trying to

         12  gouge.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I have

         14  heard some people speak and say there is plenty of

         15  power, only the distribution of it is not being done

         16  properly, and for economic reasons they try to raise

         17  the price.

         18                 MR. KWIT:  When New York, as you

         19  know, New York faces a very severe power crunch this

         20  summer, and so it is very surprising for us to hear

         21  from HPD that anything that will actually sensitized

         22  people to win electricity is most scarce at the

         23  peaks, isn't something that should be lauded and

         24  endorsed wholeheartedly.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So you
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          2  seem to agree that the power authority seems to say

          3  the New York State Public Safety Commission, I

          4  guess, is seeming to say that we will be short

          5  approximately 500 megawatts of electricity this

          6  summer.

          7                 MR. KWIT:  Yes, I do.  And I think

          8  that if it is hot, we're in the unfortunate position

          9  of playing Russian Roulette with Mother Nature.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Rolling

         11  Brown House.

         12                 MR. KWIT:  Yes.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay,

         14  thank you. I think time is of the essence and we

         15  will address the issues.

         16                 MR. KWIT:  So I just wanted to say

         17  that what this bill does, is it injects two elements

         18  that have not been there before in conservation to

         19  solve the City's problem.

         20                 Number one, it empowers the

         21  residential consumer to play a role.  Right now

         22  they're part of the problem, they do not know how

         23  much electricity costs at the peaks.

         24                 The second thing is that they

         25  generate, injects the element of time, as Ms.
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          2  Anderson said.  Prices cost more on the open market

          3  at the peaks, so when you're talking about four or

          4  five or six o'clock in the evening, that is when we

          5  face the shortage. It is when the rush hour goes on,

          6  the subways are operating full tilt, the offices are

          7  still operational, people are getting home from work

          8  and starting to turn on things, that is when power

          9  costs a lot of money.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So what

         11  are we going to do about it, when you get home that

         12  is what you do?

         13                 MR. KWIT:  What we're going to do, is

         14  we're going to put interval meters.  Interval meters

         15  give people the right to save a lot of money by

         16  reducing their electric costs at the peak.  It's

         17  just like people, people make long distance phone

         18  calls on Sunday and their nights, and late at night

         19  during the week.  You know, if you want to gab with

         20  your friend in California, you don't call them in

         21  the middle of the day because you know it is going

         22  to cost more. You wait until the week and you wait

         23  until the evening.  At home people have a lot of

         24  discretionary uses, they use their dishwashers, they

         25  can turn them on late.
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          2                 Buildings, themselves, have a double,

          3  we have a double barrel defect with co- ops.  The

          4  co- ops boards can take a lot of actions which

          5  increase conservation.  They can shut the laundry

          6  room down for particular areas, they can insulate

          7  the roofs, they can paint the roofs silver, they can

          8  do all sorts of stuff.

          9                 In the apartments people can buy

         10  energy- smart appliances, and they do.  So people

         11  are now empowered with the opportunity to save

         12  energy at the peak and that will save them the most

         13  amount of money.  We do not care how much people use

         14  it two o'clock in the morning, we care how much they

         15  use when the City is hard- pressed for it's

         16  electricity capacity.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes,

         18  just one of the Counsels just pointed out to me that

         19  on page 2 of your statement you have a graph.  You

         20  show what the cost of, you do not - -

         21                 MR. KWIT:  That is correct.  Right

         22  now what is happening is that the demand charge for

         23  those, which is the maximum half of hour of usage in

         24  the month cost more than half.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, I
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          2  understand. You're showing - -

          3                 MR. KWIT:  That is correct.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  the

          5  relative safety.

          6                 MR. KWIT:  The demand is in the

          7  center.  And what we're showing, we're attempting to

          8  show is that the demand in Mr. Montblanc's building

          9  actually went down by 15 percent after the building

         10  took the appropriate actions, and Mr. Montblanc will

         11  describe these actions that he took.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You have

         13  the dollar amount, but you do not have the amount,

         14  the usage of electricity in this chart.

         15                 MR. KWIT:  We can provide that to you

         16  separately.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  All

         18  right.

         19                 MR. KWIT:  I think we have provided

         20  that to you separately, but we can do that again.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay,

         22  thank you very much.

         23                 MR. KWIT:  Okay.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We do

         25  look at the things that you give us, we try to
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          2  understand them.

          3                 MR. KWIT:  No, no, no, I understand

          4  that, and we appreciate it too.  You know, thank you

          5  very much for the opportunity to testify.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But

          7  you're using as an example that one building, Mr.

          8  Montblanc's building, which I'm familiar with.

          9                 MR. KWIT:  No, but I think it is

         10  obvious that - -

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It

         12  sounds very obvious, but are there any other

         13  examples of it, that you know of, any other place

         14  that it has been used?  That is the same question I

         15  asked --

         16                 MR. KWIT:  I think the issue of real

         17  time pricing, which the equipment of interval meters

         18  will allow us to basically be much more careful in

         19  terms of how we can bill people.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That

         21  seems logical.

         22                 MR. KWIT:  Which is what the bill

         23  provides for. Right now, this is an emerging

         24  technology.  The type of meters that you have right

         25  now is similar to an odometer on a car, it just

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            146

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  keeps chugging and chugging and chugging, there is

          3  no time element. The new meters can measure

          4  electricity based on 15 minute increments, the way

          5  power is being billed on the open market.  So people

          6  for the first time can have their electricity

          7  measured when they use it, do something about it,

          8  save a lot of money, and also, reduce the demand on

          9  the total system for the City.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, I

         11  understand.  So you're relying on logic to convince

         12  us of what you're saying rather than, and there is

         13  one building, out of the huge - -

         14                 MR. KWIT:  We're talking about new

         15  technology of metering capability that heretofore

         16  did not exist for consumers.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.

         18                 MR. KWIT:  You have to understand

         19  that Con Ed is not putting these in direct metered

         20  buildings, they're only doing this for large

         21  customers.  So the only way that people can have,

         22  can play a role in solving this problem - -

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  If they

         24  have knowledge.

         25                 MR. KWIT: - -  is if they have those
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          2  meters to be giving those price signals to reduce a

          3  the peak.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What

          5  does EIS stand for?

          6                 MR. KWIT:  Energy Investment Systems.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes,

          8  okay, it's not Environmental Impact Statement?

          9                 MR. KWIT:  No, no, although it feels

         10  like that today.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay,

         12  thank you.

         13                 MR. KWIT:  Thank you very much.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank

         15  you very much. Jack, nice to see you.

         16                 Next we have, again, Mr. Jordi Reyes-

         17  Montblanc, and whose building we were just

         18  discussing, Mr. Montblanc.  And this time you're

         19  appearing on behalf of the HDFC Council, Housing

         20  Development Finance Corporation.

         21                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Yes.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Your

         23  name is?

         24                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  George Reyes-

         25  Montblanc.  I'm the President of the HDFC Council,
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          2  the Association of the HDFC Cooperatives throughout

          3  the City of New York.  We represent approximately

          4  1,400 HDFCs, co- ops and tenant- controlled

          5  building. The process that is going on here today

          6  has been part of our, of my life for the last three

          7  years.

          8                 Fortunately, some of those questions

          9  that you have made will be able to be answered by

         10  further testimony that is still pending.

         11                 I would like to thank the Chairman of

         12  the Housing Committee, Councilman Spigner and my

         13  friends, Councilman Stanley Michels, and Council

         14  Member Kathryn Freed, and all the others that co-

         15  sponsored this legislation.

         16                 I will try to make my statement as

         17  short and sweet as possible, and I will not be

         18  giving the technical details because we have enough

         19  technical people that have talked about it so far.

         20                 The support that we're getting from

         21  the cooperative community is obvious, regardless of

         22  HPD's points that were made earlier here today, I

         23  will point out that we spoke to HPD for over a year

         24  and a half, we had conversations, dialogue with HPD

         25  for about a year and a half.  They have never really
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          2  understood the concept of master metering,

          3  submetering using this modern technology, and they

          4  have never really opened their bank to look into it

          5  any further since the last time we met two years

          6  ago.

          7                 So it does not surprise me that they

          8  took the position that they took.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Maybe

         10  they will learn from the testimony.

         11                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Well, I hope

         12  so.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I have

         14  learned that they do listen and sometimes change

         15  their minds.

         16                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  I was debating

         17  exactly what to say over here today, and decided

         18  that the only thing I really could talk about with

         19  any certain knowledge is what has happened in my own

         20  building, 601 West 136th Street, HDFC.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you

         22  have submetering in your building?

         23                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  What's that?

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you

         25  have submetering in your building?
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          2                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Yes, we did it

          3  two years ago. We have, not only do we have master

          4  metering/submetering, we also have been able to get

          5  intelligent meters, interval meters, which allows us

          6  to do a lot of things that have been discussed here,

          7  managing the peak.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So more

          9  or less treating your building like a pilot project?

         10                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Yes, that is

         11  exactly what it is.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I see.

         13                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  My building is

         14  a 38- unit building, it is in Hamilton Heights in

         15  the south end of Hamilton Heights, well known to

         16  you.  Eighty percent of the residents in my building

         17  are senior citizens, average income of about $8,100,

         18  you know, too rich to be poor, and too poor to be

         19  rich type of thing. Most people do not qualify for

         20  Section 8 because they make maybe $5.00 more than

         21  what the minimum for Section 8 is.  They don't

         22  qualify for SSI because they make six or seven

         23  dollars more than what the minimum is.  So this is

         24  what I'm talking they're too rich and too poor.

         25                 So what we have tried to do, is we
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          2  tried to figure out ways that we can save them

          3  money, not only in the operation of the building,

          4  which is everybody's responsibility as we are all

          5  the owners, but also so that our people can keep

          6  their money in their pocket.

          7                 About three years ago, I had this

          8  surprised call and visit by Lewis Kwit.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Just to

         10  cut to the chase, because it is getting late.  In

         11  other words you were called and you have done it.

         12                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  We have done

         13  it.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You have

         15  done it and you have installed it.  Tell us what

         16  that experience is?

         17                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  We have done

         18  it, in fact, we have cut down our peak demand.  Our

         19  peak demand we have cut it down about 15 percent.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So your

         21  feeling is that your tenants pay attention to the

         22  cost, they pay attention to what is happening, as a

         23  result of which when the peak demand is, when it is

         24  more expensive they use less electricity.

         25                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  We have a
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          2  working, managing board and shareholders and

          3  residents that actually talk about these things.

          4                 The last project that we have, we did

          5  a cost effectiveness analysis about two months ago,

          6  and we figured that 40 percent of our electric bill

          7  was due to lighting.  And when we did the cost-

          8  benefit study, we realized that we could change all

          9  the lightbulbs in our building, not only the public

         10  areas but in the apartments, taking advantage of one

         11  of the NYSERDA's programs we could get the energy

         12  efficiency lightbulbs, you know those funny looking

         13  lightbulbs that produce as much light and consume

         14  like less than one- third of the electricity.  We

         15  were able to get them at about half the price,

         16  because of that NYSERDA program.  So we bought for

         17  the whole building, and we are still in the process,

         18  because we wanted to see the impact.

         19                 So we first changed the apartment

         20  that had the highest consumptions, and at the end of

         21  one month, one apartment, the first apartment that

         22  we did shows a savings of about $9.00, and a

         23  reduction in consumption.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In other

         25  words you had the submetering installed prior to the
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          2  change of the lightbulbs, and you could see the

          3  change in the cost by using the submetering.

          4                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Right, and if

          5  we didn't have the intelligent interval meters that

          6  we have, we would not be able to determine some of

          7  the things that we have determined.  For example,

          8  our building peak takes place between seven and

          9  eight o'clock at night.  It doesn't take place

         10  between four and six, like it happens in the City.

         11  The reason for that is that a lot of our people work

         12  late hours and they come in around the same time.

         13  We found that we were having a peak at that moment,

         14  so we looked and we spoke to every one of the

         15  apartments that we determined from the new meters,

         16  from the interval intelligent meters, we determined

         17  which apartments were the ones who were contributing

         18  to that peak.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So you

         20  could tell in your master meter exactly how much is

         21  being used in each apartment as well as the

         22  individuals can in their own apartment?

         23                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Exactly.  Not

         24  only that, but at what time is that taking place.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Very
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          2  good.

          3                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  So we spoke to

          4   - -

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How

          6  long, over what range of period of time have you had

          7  these submeters?

          8                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Two years.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And over

         10  the two- year period - -

         11                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  We average

         12  about anywhere between, depending on the apartment,

         13  anywhere between 15 to 25 percent savings.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Savings

         15  in both money and electricity?

         16                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Savings on

         17  money and electricity.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's

         19  nice to save money, but the whole purpose of this

         20  thing is to try to save electricity, as well.

         21                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Well that is

         22  true, but I will tell you, Stanley, my main thing is

         23  to save the money.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And

         25  saving the money is an incentive in saving
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          2  electricity.

          3                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  And if we can

          4  save money and save electricity, I'm extremely

          5  happy.  And I am ecstatically happy, and I will

          6  welcome any Council member to come over and take a

          7  look at what we have and how we do it.

          8                 The key to these whole saving, not

          9  only saving electricity, but saving money, is to

         10  save at the peak.  At the peak there is a peak

         11  demand charge that Con Edison assesses that is

         12  anywhere between twenty- five and thirty dollars a

         13  kilowatt hour. So if we're able, while that kilowatt

         14  hour, you know, during normal times would be maybe

         15  five or six cents.  During that half hour of peak

         16  demand, it goes up into the twenties of dollars.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And you

         18  have had, we don't have to take - -

         19                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  So we have

         20  been able to save our time, we're saving electricity

         21  and we are reducing, not only the consumption, but

         22  our costs.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Has this

         24  been documented by somebody - -

         25                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Yes, Sir.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  in

          3  an engineering or scientific way, so we can use it?

          4                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Yes, Sir, EIS

          5  has all the technical data.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So that

          7  we can show people this is - -

          8                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Not only EIS,

          9  NYSERDA has it too.  This, what we're doing, is

         10  being done in conjunction with NYSERDA, and that is

         11  the reason why NYSERDA is so strongly supporting

         12  this program, and that is the reason why the Public

         13  Service Commission has sent somebody from Albany to

         14  come here and testify in our behalf.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay,

         16  that is terrific and I want to see that.  I'm only

         17  sorry, as the Chairman of the Environmental

         18  Committee, that we cannot have submetering for water

         19  so we could see the same thing.  We try to encourage

         20  people to save water.

         21                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  We might look

         22  into that too.

         23                 I would like to acknowledge the

         24  number of people who are here who are doing the

         25  round, but there still is some, from the Bronx and
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          2  from Brooklyn and from Manhattan, would you stand

          3  up, please?

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  These are

          7  representatives of our chapters in the Bronx, in

          8  Brooklyn and in Manhattan.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Have

         10  there been submetering in any of their buildings?

         11                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  The crux of

         12  the matter on submetering/master metering direct

         13  metered buildings is the cost factor.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I

         15  understand that.

         16                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  It cost about

         17  $500 per meter.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is

         19  why we had the J- 51 legislation.

         20                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Exactly, this

         21  is why it is so essential.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The

         23  reason I'm asking you is because we now have had the

         24  experience in your building, which was done without

         25  the legislation.
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          2                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Well there are

          3  other buildings that have done it.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Wait,

          5  wait, wait, I just wanted to know if there were any

          6  other buildings that have submetering and whether

          7  they're experience in the saving of electricity is

          8  the same?

          9                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  There are

         10  other buildings that have done it, and for the

         11  testimony we will collaborate that.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But we

         13  don't have anymore testimony on this issue.

         14                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  You have Jack

         15  and Herbert Hirschfeld.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Have you

         17  signed up, the only testimony that I have is Mr.

         18  Hirschfeld's.

         19                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  Mr.

         20  Hirschfeld.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes.

         22  You're the last person to testify.

         23                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  And what - -

         24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  And Jack.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Jack is
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          2  going to testify?  Excuse me?  Okay, but why don't

          3  you now, Herb, why don't you just take, yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. Montblanc,

          5  I want to ask you a question on those bulbs, you

          6  said that you changed all those bulbs and you had

          7  peak time.

          8                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  We're still in

          9  the process, because we want to see the impact.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Those bulbs are

         11  so expensive, they're about fifteen, twenty bucks a

         12  bulb.

         13                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  We getting

         14  them for about six or seven dollars.  And we feel

         15  that because they last four or five years, that the

         16  replacement of the incandescent bulbs and the

         17  reduction in consumption that in a matter of about

         18  seven or eight months they pay for themselves.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well I would

         20  like to be kept informed as to your findings.  I

         21  mean, I may be reconsidering my attitude.

         22                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:   The

         23  expectation we have is that a portion of our

         24  electric bill, the electricity directly attributable

         25  to lighting, we expect that that will go down by two
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          2  thirds.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well we will be

          4  waiting to hear your report as to what your

          5  experiences are.

          6                 Sir, are you going to testify now?

          7                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Yes, my name is Herb

          8  Hirschfeld. I'm a technical consultant.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Engage the

         10  microphone, please, Sir?

         11                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Okay.  My name is

         12  Herb Hirschfeld. I'm an independent technical

         13  consultant.  I'm a licensed professional engineer by

         14  the State of New York.  I'm regarded as the expert

         15  in electrical submetering.

         16                 When the New York State Public

         17  Service Commission reinstated submetering in 1979, I

         18  was retained by the New York State Energy Research

         19  Development Authority and the New York State

         20  Division of Housing and Community Renewal to

         21  evaluate the new technologies that came on the

         22  marketplace.  I have served as a technical

         23  consultant to HPD, I wrote their Co- generation

         24  Manual. I served as a technical consultant to

         25  NYSERDA, I have written their Residential Electrical
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          2  Submetering Manual.  I was a consultant to Con

          3  Edison in the early nineties on their Residential

          4  Electrical Submetering Program, and currently

          5  servicing over 500 buildings throughout New York

          6  City on the NYSERDA Residential Submetering Program.

          7                 Basically, to one of the, I came here

          8  without any written testimony because I wanted to

          9  listen to everything and try to fill in the holes

         10  and be available to answer specific questions.

         11                 In a directly metered building, if

         12  you talk about the technology of co- generation, in

         13  a directly metered building the only available

         14  source of electricity for the co- generation system

         15  is the common area load.  Therefore, the building

         16  must be mastered metered in order to include the

         17  apartment load, electric load into the building

         18  load.  So right now with the energy shortage and the

         19  projected crisis this summer, if we have a hot

         20  summer, and the State promoting CHP or Combined Heat

         21  Power systems, it becomes very important for

         22  directly metered buildings to be able to become

         23  master metered buildings in order to improve the

         24  feasibility of co generation for residential

         25  marketplace.  So that is one specific point that was

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            162

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  not mentioned at this particular hearing.

          3                 Secondly, in addition to the

          4  financial incentive that J- 51 offers to directly

          5  metered apartments to become mastered metered, in

          6  general, if you just do that by itself, I would

          7  agree that perhaps there would not be energy

          8  conservation, but if you combined that with advanced

          9  metering technology being developed, and I'm also a

         10  technical consultant for NYSERDA on their advanced

         11  metering program, and enable the residents to shift

         12  their usage to off- peak times, then in combination

         13  with the master metering conversion with the

         14  advanced metering retrofit then you have the basis

         15  for developing a sound energy conservation program

         16  in the apartment building.

         17                 So I strongly disagree with HPD on

         18  their stand.  I am a consultant to Manhattan Plaza,

         19  which is an HPD property, to Waterside Plaza, to

         20  North Waterside, to Stevenson Commons, a variety of

         21  properties under HPD jurisdiction, and I have found

         22  in looking at the 500 buildings that I have looked

         23  at during the past six months as part of the NYSERDA

         24  program that the buildings that are most in need of

         25  energy conservation are the buildings that are
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          2  currently in the Mitchell- Lama program and serviced

          3  by HPD.  And I would also suggest that HPD would pay

          4  closer scrutiny to the New York State Energy

          5  Conservation Construction Code, which mandates that

          6  buildings undergoing substantial electrical

          7  retrofit, they are mandated by the New York State

          8  Code to meter each apartment.  And there are a

          9  number of Mitchell- Lama programs currently

         10  undergoing this process, which are not, which will

         11  not attempt to meter each apartment which will

         12  further exacerbate the problem of the City of New

         13  York in so far as energy is concerned.

         14                 I will answer any questions that you

         15  have.  And obviously, I endorse this program very

         16  strongly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I think the

         18  arguments in favor of this measure are becoming very

         19  clear to those of us who will have to make a

         20  decision on it.  I think your main fight has to be

         21  made with the Administration, I think you are going

         22  to have to convince them that this is not an anti-

         23  conservation message which will encourage greater

         24  use of scarce resources, energy resources.

         25                 But we have been listening and we
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          2  want to thank you for your testimony as well as

          3  those who preceded you.

          4                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Well, I would like

          5  to be invited to the meeting that you're going to

          6  arrange with HPD.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Stanley, you

          8  have a question?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, I want

         10  to ask a question.

         11                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Sure.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Have you had

         13  an opportunity to read the legislation itself?

         14                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, from

         16  what you're saying it isn't just any submetering

         17  should be permitted, it seems to be a certain type

         18  of submetering which is capable of being, I guess,

         19  telling the tenant when the peak hours are and how

         20  we can reduce costs.  So should the language be

         21  changed in some way to indicate the type of

         22  submetering that would result in energy

         23  conservation?  Is there any language in there that

         24  we can change, just not allow any submetering?

         25                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  No, because
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          2  basically what I find is that I think it is best to

          3  keep it as simple as possible.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But don't

          5  you think, the whole idea is to conserve energy and

          6  on certain submeters that help to do that rather

          7  than others, don't you think, at least, if we don't

          8  actually delineate the legislation to say this is

          9  the type, at least say, submetering approved by so

         10  on and so on?

         11                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Well I definitely

         12  would recommend that buildings that implement

         13  electrical submetering utilize the advanced metering

         14  technology in order to accomplish the - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  We want to take

         16  one step at a time.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But I think

         18  if you do it, you have to do it right and you have

         19  to get the right submetering in there, if it is

         20  going to result in energy conservation.

         21                 But if we could put it in, I don't

         22  know if the cost is any higher of this type smart

         23  submetering, whatever you call it.

         24                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Well there is an

         25  incentive program available from NYSERDA, which is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            166

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  providing currently $150 per apartment to offset

          3  some of the differential cost between conventional

          4  and advanced metering.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So we should

          6  get advanced metering and there is an incentive plus

          7  the J- 51, and this would end up conserving more

          8  electricity.

          9                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  If you were to ask

         10  me which of the two metering options I would more

         11  strongly recommend, I would definitely say the

         12  advanced metering.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Obviously,

         14  if the objective here is energy conservation.

         15                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So we should

         17  do that?

         18                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And we

         20  should not just allow them to do the cheapest

         21  submetering possible, because that doesn't end up

         22  giving us any energy conservation.

         23                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Well what it does

         24  accomplish the other type of submetering what it

         25  does accomplish, I made the point about the co-
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          2  generation.  A building should have a choice of what

          3  metering options to select.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  If they have

          5  co- generation, but not every building is going to

          6  have co- generation.

          7                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  Well the point being

          8  that they would not be eligible of implementation of

          9  co- generation, at any future time, if they were to

         10  remain directly metered, at least, if they were to

         11  put in a conventional submeter, they would at least

         12  become available, make themselves available for,

         13  let's say, co generational other energy conservation

         14  measures that are being developed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But they can

         16  also do that with the advanced submetering.

         17                 MR. HIRSCHFELD:  That is correct.

         18  The advance meter concept would be preferable to the

         19  conventional submeter.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I mean I

         21  understand, I think that is what we ought to be

         22  looking at.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Mr.

         25  Hirschfeld. Next on this issue.
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          2                 MR. WELHELMS:  I was invited to speak

          3  by Lewis Kwit and George Montblanc.  My name is Jack

          4  Welhelms.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Go ahead, Sir.

          6                 MR. WELHELMS:  So may I speak?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Sure.

          8                 MR. WELHELMS:  My name is Jack

          9  Welhelms.  I'm a Vice- President for Institutional

         10  Benefits at Energy Investment Systems.  And I just

         11  wanted to make a few comments to supplement the

         12  other statements that have been made regarding, I

         13  want to make some comments regarding new programs

         14  that are coming online through the PSC and through

         15  the utilities, specifically Con Ed, that are germane

         16  to this advanced metering issue.

         17                 There, it is part of the effort that

         18  the State is undergoing and the utilities to manage

         19  demand in New York City, and to put into place

         20  programs that will provide incentives for reduction

         21  of demand and control of prices.  One program that

         22  is being promoted and should go online with Con Ed

         23  by May 1st, is something called Real Time Pricing.

         24  And Real Time Pricing requires interval meters, or

         25  it requires advanced meters as a condition to
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          2  participation.  And, as you know, the advanced

          3  meters are capable of measuring demand.  And this is

          4  something that is, advanced meters since they are

          5  not, they have not been provided conventionally in

          6  the residential market, the residential market will

          7  be a new market for this program to reach and the

          8  utilities have expressed some difficulty in trying

          9  to reach the residential market in their initial

         10  proposals which had to be reviewed by the Commission

         11  and sent back for revision.

         12                 So I think that this is particularly

         13  timely right now, these incentives that J- 51

         14  capital, the cost offsets coming into place at a

         15  time when these Real Time Pricing programs are going

         16  to be coming into place that will provide folks with

         17  the technology in order to be able to participate.

         18                 Direct metered apartments will not be

         19  able to participate because those are not interval

         20  meters.  And so that is the point I wanted to make

         21  and I think I endorse Councilman Michels concept, at

         22  least, of trying to make sure that we're doing

         23  interval meters in these conversions, and hopefully

         24  that is something that we can work out with HPD, and

         25  hopefully we can have adequate allowances in the
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          2  cost schedules for covering the extra incremental

          3  cost of that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  Well I

          5  would urge you to continue whatever contacts you

          6  have with the Administration to convince them as

          7  well as you have convinced all, the impression that

          8  you're making on the Council.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Mr.

         10  Chairman, the thing, we have acknowledged that we

         11  have learned a heck of a lot from these last

         12  testimonies.  And sometimes when we're sitting here

         13  we do learn from you and we do listen to you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Some people

         16  refuse just sitting up here doing nothing.

         17                 MR. WELHELMS:  We're learning every

         18  day too.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right,

         23  moving now to the general public, persons who wish

         24  to testify today on various topic, in that category,

         25  Ann Rocker.  I must limit you to two minutes because
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          2  we have a lot and these are not scheduled agenda

          3  items today, so we need a two minute, I must urge

          4  that you keep it to two minutes.

          5                 MS. ROCKER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          6  for holding this hearing and allowing me to address

          7  some issues that is pertinent to the process going

          8  on in our building.  Our building 640/644 Riverside

          9  Drive.  And I just have a page and a half, hopefully

         10  it will only take a minute to do this.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Your name,

         12  please?

         13                 MS. ROCKER:  My name is L. Ann

         14  Rocker, and I live in 644 Riverside Drive.

         15                 Okay, I have passed out copies of

         16  these questions. Our reason for bringing these

         17  questions before you is that we feel that there is

         18  an obligation on the part of the City Council to

         19  make sure that these questions are answered by HPD

         20  and that the tenants is a full part of this process.

         21                 Whether the City of New York's

         22  Department of Housing Preservation and Development,

         23  HPD, has included a proviso that will obligate

         24  Neighborhood Restore, the owner of the Transfer Area

         25  and its affiliates to following conditions:  1) to
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          2  train tenants to become homeowners, and to limit the

          3  reconveyance of the Transfer Area (640- 644

          4  Riverside Drive buildings) to all current tenants

          5  for homeownership and building ownership.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, your name

          7  again?

          8                 MS. ROCKER:  L. Ann Rocker.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, now all

         10  of these issues that you raise very clearly and

         11  specifically are not a part of today's agenda.  What

         12  I will do, however, is make them a part of the

         13  record today, and if and when 640 and 644 comes

         14  before this Council for an action, then would be the

         15  appropriate time for these conditions and concerns

         16  to be expressed.

         17                 But we will have had them, because

         18  you have submitted them today, and that is to your

         19  advantage.

         20                 MS. ROCKER:  With the Transfer taking

         21  place at this time - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  But this

         23  building is not part of the Transfer being - -

         24                 MS. ROCKER: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Excuse me, it's
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          2  not on today's agenda.  It is taking place, but it

          3  is not on today's agenda.

          4                 MS. ROCKER:  It is part of the

          5  Transfer though, is our buildings are part of the

          6  first Transfer, they are a part of it.  And our

          7  Councilman here, can attest to that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, she is

          9  right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It is, now, I'm

         11  informed that 640 and 644 are a part of the

         12  Transfer, but they are not on today's agenda for a

         13  vote.

         14                 MS. ROCKER:  Well you are not holding

         15  another hearing on these prior to the close, and the

         16  Council is scheduled to vote on this on the 25th.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right, we

         18  have Council Member Michels here and he will fully

         19  explain why.  These are in your district, Council

         20  Member Michels?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, they

         22  are.  They're about to be Transferred, both of these

         23  buildings are about to be Transferred in the Third

         24  Party Transfer operation.  And I am not objecting to

         25  that, as a matter of fact, I support it.  And Ms.
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          2  Rocker is down here with some other people in

          3  opposition, and we also have some people here in - -

          4                 MS. ROCKER:  Not exactly in

          5  opposition.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You also

          7  have some people here in support of it and are

          8  testifying.

          9                 The point being that I had looked at

         10  her testimony and had it in front of me when I was

         11  questioning HPD about the Third Party Transfer, and

         12  many of the questions that were raised by Ms. Rocker

         13  were answered by the HPD representatives when we had

         14  the hearing, that part of the hearing with respect

         15  to the Third Party Transfer.

         16                 MS. ROCKER:  I beg to - -

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  As a matter

         18  of fact, let me just state this so you know, that

         19  there was a petition in support of the Third Party

         20  Transfer that was signed by approximately 168

         21  tenants, and I have a copy of it, and I would like

         22  to make that part of the record of this particular,

         23  both buildings, 98 from 640 Riverside Drive, and 70

         24  from 644 Riverside Drive, and they're representing,

         25  and I do have a copy of the petition, it was given
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          2  to us by Ms. Rocker, who in opposition and there are

          3  20 signatures.

          4                 MS. ROCKER:  I did not give that to

          5  you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  No, I have a

          7  copy of it.

          8                 MS. ROCKER:  Yes, but I did not give

          9  it to you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Whoever, I

         11  did not say you gave it to me, but I said I have a

         12  copy of it.

         13                 MS. ROCKER:  Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And I

         15  recognize it. They're entitled to it.

         16                 This is a process that has been going

         17  on for many years, and this process has been, there

         18  has been numerous meetings, some of which I have

         19  attended and it seem to be good support for it.  And

         20  therefore, I am not going to be objecting to the

         21  transfer.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And the rules,

         23  Ms. Rocker, provide for the Council, and the

         24  practices that the Council has had over the years

         25  extended primary voice in these matters to the
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          2  Councilman from the district.  And so in these

          3  proceedings we have taken the recommendation of the

          4  local Council Member, who is Stanley Michels.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Let me just

          6  clear up the record for a second.  The petition was

          7  given to me by Mr. Dotson, who is sitting here, but

          8  you are signatory of that.

          9                 MS. ROCKER:  Yes, I did.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, I

         11  understand.

         12                 MS. ROCKER:  To get questions

         13  answered and on the table that have not been on the

         14  table as it relates to what the provisions are for

         15  the Transfer and HPD signing off on it, off on them.

         16    And the main thing here, is since we have learned

         17  that Hilly Realty is in court and there is a tax

         18  lien sale by the City of New York on the 31st of

         19  May, and they have a sole agent who will be buying

         20  out Hilly Realties, $10 million worth of loans on

         21  these two buildings.

         22                 I had hope that our Councilman would

         23  have asked specifically HPD about that, because we

         24  want to know where does the building stand, if Hilly

         25  Realty is still in court and you are signing off on
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          2  the Third Party Transfer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Once, and I

          4  think it was answered by HPD, that once the Third

          5  Party Transfer goes through, the tax lien sale is

          6  finished.

          7                 MS. ROCKER:  Oh, but he came back and

          8  said that was provisions for the landlord to get his

          9  property back if he satisfied that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  That is with

         11  bankruptcy, that is not a tax lien sale, that is a

         12  bankruptcy.

         13                 MS. ROCKER:  Well, see that is where

         14  they are in bankruptcy court.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Well nobody

         16  knows what the answer of that is, right now.

         17                 MS. ROCKER:  Okay, but how does that

         18  effect the Transfer?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  In the past,

         20  this has been attempted in the past and never been

         21  successful.  And it does not, and I'm not going to

         22  predict what the bankruptcy court is going to do,

         23  but from what I'm being informed of is that almost

         24  98 percent of the cases the bankruptcy court does

         25  not permit the landlord to take his property to put
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          2  it in bankruptcy and then these Third Party

          3  Transfers go through.

          4                 But if the bankruptcy court rules the

          5  other way, then the Third Party Transfer does not go

          6  through.  That is the answer.

          7                 MS. ROCKER:  Well they have had these

          8  loans, outstanding loans, and they have been in the

          9  court with them for 20 years.  And HPD has had them

         10  in court and have not closed on them, and they are

         11  still alive as long as the judge has not answered to

         12  that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Well that is

         14  something that remains to seen.

         15                 MS. ROCKER:  He has not ruled.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But if the

         17  judge as predicted, will not allow them to go into

         18  bankruptcy on these buildings, it does not include

         19  these buildings in bankruptcy, and then the Third

         20  Party Transfer will go through.

         21                 MS. ROCKER:  But why haven't they,

         22  why haven't HPD closed on that?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Because of

         24  the fact that, because this is new, because this

         25  continuing now, not because of the bankruptcy court,
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          2  I guess.

          3                 MS. ROCKER:  Well they lost in court

          4  a couple of times.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Okay, have

          6  lost in court, then the Third Party Transfer will go

          7  through, it is in the process now.

          8                 MS. ROCKER:  Yes, I know, but they,

          9  how about the tax lien of it, is that going through?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The tax lien

         11  sale, no it will not.  Once the Third Party Transfer

         12  goes through, there is no tax lien sale, all of the

         13  liens are wiped out.

         14                 MS. ROCKER:  Okay, these questions

         15  that we have written here - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And the

         17  rents, and you heard before that the rents remain

         18  the same, the rents do not go up until the actual

         19  Transfer, and - -

         20                 MS. ROCKER:  And also - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Councilman.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: - -  remain

         23  as a rent stabilized tenant.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Councilman,

         25  Councilman, might I suggest that you meet with Ms.
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          2  Rocker and whoever is with her at the back of the

          3  room, at the back of the Chamber and carry this

          4  discussion on, rather informally.  We have others

          5  who wish to speak.

          6                 MS. ROCKER:  Frankly, I think it

          7  would have been important if you had allowed the one

          8  page that was all to be read so that it could be

          9  part of the record.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It will all be

         11  made part of the record, Ms. Rocker.

         12                 MS. ROCKER:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Now we have

         14  others here today who also want to speak on six

         15  building, I assume that applies to you, Heyward

         16  Dotson that applies to you, as well, Judith Thames

         17  that applies to you, Wanda Jones that applies to

         18  you, Violeta Enriquez as well.  There is one person

         19  here who is Doris Dande from 508 West 162 Street.

         20  So Ms. Dander if you would take the table, Doris

         21  Dander is she here, Doris Dande?  Okay.

         22                 Murphy Heyliger and Fidel Edwards.

         23  Okay, that exhaust our - -  Did you want to speak,

         24  Sir?  Well take a seat quickly, quickly, very

         25  quickly.
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          2                 Let it be known that the Council is

          3  an inclusive and we try to provide opportunity.

          4                 Sir, identify yourself?  Permit him

          5  to speak, Sir?

          6                 MR. LANNDIS:  My name is Bill

          7  Lanndis.  I'm here on behalf of 644 Riverside Drive,

          8  and I would like to address certain issues that seem

          9  to be of concern to some tenants.

         10                 As for questions about how the not-

         11  for- profits were chosen, we, the Tenants

         12  Association after, and the tenants selected

         13  Settlement Housing Fund and UHAB after carefully

         14  researching a large pool of not- for- profits.  It

         15  wasn't a spontaneous decision, it was done over a

         16  long, long period of time, and the tenants were

         17  involved.

         18                 I personally along with two workers

         19  from UHAB gathered over 85 percent of the tenants

         20  signatures in favor of this program.  I realize that

         21  certain people are opposed to the program for their

         22  own personal, political agenda, but I don't feel

         23  that these hearings are the time or the place for

         24  those type of issues.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right, Ms.
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          2  Enriquez.

          3                 MS. ENRIQUEZ:  Yes, I want to state

          4  that it was very careful inform, I informed the

          5  tenants very carefully, they understood.  And this

          6  has been going on for three years, they understood

          7  that responsibilities, commitment and hard work take

          8  place if they want to become owners and have a very

          9  standard of life.

         10                 With that understanding 85 percent of

         11  the tenants signed for the RFQ.  They know that if

         12  they want to have a better life, they have to commit

         13  themselves, work hard, and they understood that the

         14  rents are going to restructured in order to pay our

         15  debts.  So the tenants are informed very well for

         16  almost two years.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well thank you

         18  very much for your testimony.

         19                 MS. ENRIQUEZ:  That is what I have to

         20  say.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, anyone

         22  else looking to testify?  Take a seat, quickly, Sir.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Excuse me,

         24  can I ask you a question, one question?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Yes, Sir.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  How many

          3  meetings have you had - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Put your mic

          5  on, Stanley?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I'm sorry.

          7  How many meetings have you had with the potential

          8  people from UHAB and Settlement Houses?

          9                 MS. ENRIQUEZ:  In about a year we

         10  have about six or seven meetings.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  How many

         12  meetings have the tenants had?

         13                 MR. LANNDIS:  In the lobbies?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  In the lobby

         15  of the building?

         16                 MR. LANNDIS:  I would say at least

         17  four or five, flyers went out, memos went under the

         18  door, we called tenants on the phone to remind them.

         19    The Settlement Housing Fund and UHAB also had

         20  meetings down at their offices that tenants

         21  requested, information was given out and it was

         22  distributed.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  As a matter

         24  of fact I was at a couple of those meetings, myself.

         25                 MR. LANNDIS: Yes, you were.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I saw the

          3  notices that were in the front door, in front of the

          4  door, right?

          5                 MR. LANNDIS:  Yes, and over 130

          6  tenants attended that meeting that you went to.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And it was

          8  distributed under the doors of all of the tenants?

          9                 MR. LANNDIS:  Each door got a flyer.

         10  If people are claiming now that they did not

         11  information, it is because they did not want

         12  information.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Now, please,

         14  do not draw that conclusion, it's not up to you.

         15                 MR. LANNDIS:  Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, thank

         17  you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And were the

         19  flyers put under the doors of all the tenants?

         20                 MR. LANNDIS:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you very

         22  much, Sir.

         23                 MR. ENRIQUEZ:  And it was translated

         24  in English and in Spanish.

         25                 MR. LANNDIS: Yes, English on one
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          2  side, Spanish on the other.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you very

          4  much, Sir.  And Madam, you wanted to testify, you

          5  wanted to make a statement, quickly?

          6                 MS. THAMES:  Thank you for a chance

          7  to speak openly and freely, because in our tenant

          8  meetings the people who have questions have been

          9  ignored.  In the meetings the difficulty has been,

         10  it is so ironic, the population of new tenants in my

         11  part of the 640/644 buildings is primarily Hispanic,

         12  the new tenants.  But those of us who have been

         13  there for 25 to 30 years are not bilingual, so what

         14  has happened in an unusual way was that we were told

         15  at times, HPD will explain that, or we will send you

         16  a flyer. But we were not kept in the loop, we were

         17  not.  And when we downloaded information and had

         18  major questions that would have, at least, we

         19  believe, given you pause to consider pulling us out

         20  of the Transfer Program at this time, we were not

         21  encouraged to share it nor were we included.

         22                 These were, you cannot say private

         23  meetings, if people feel that they invited everyone

         24  who was involved, but all the tenants really are

         25  involved.  And so a meeting with the person, who is
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          2  the President, for example, who happened to be an

          3  employee of the sponsor that was eventually

          4  selected, that sponsor was not taken from a pool

          5  that the tenants were able to discuss and analyze

          6  and research, the sponsor was taken because the

          7  sponsored had hired the representative of our half

          8  of the building.  She worked for UHAB, and that is

          9  why they were chosen as the sponsor.

         10                 And the more we objected and

         11  protested the less we, whichever were the most vocal

         12  people saying, well, tell us more, this sounds

         13  almost shady, what is really going on?  What does

         14  the Transfer Program involve, and what do you mean,

         15  we won't ever have to pay any taxes?  We were pushed

         16  away, excluded, flyers were not under our door, and

         17  those issues were not addressed at the meetings

         18  where one of us could possibly sit in at different

         19  times.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  How many

         21  meetings did you attend of the tenants?

         22                 MS. THAMES:  Not only, how many

         23  meetings were called and announced?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  How many

         25  meetings did you actually attend, you know there
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          2  were meetings, right?

          3                 MS. THAMES:  There was a meeting in

          4  June where two people who were selected walked out

          5  on us, because the American speaking segment had

          6  questions that was the meeting - -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Were you at

          8  the same meeting I was at?

          9                 MS. THAMES:  No, by the time that

         10  meeting came, I was with my grandson that night, but

         11  I made sure that I talked to at least four people

         12  that we disagree on some of the things, we don't

         13  agree among ourselves on all of it, but we have

         14  questions that we want answered.  I sent my

         15  questions to that meeting, that is when we had the

         16  big banner about Welcome, Stanley Michels, thank

         17  you, Stanley.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And when I

         19  heard so many questions, asked the very questions

         20  that were being asked, a lot of the questions here,

         21  and they were answered by the people there.

         22                 MS. THAMES:  And some of those

         23  questions and that information was very reassuring.

         24  What the problem is, is this business of excluding

         25  the people who seem to be the thinking people or the
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          2  people who seem to be a little alert about the facts

          3  that some of this is not as tailored made for

          4  640/644 as it is for other buildings that are in the

          5  program.

          6                 We were simply asking for more time

          7  to see to it that all the i's had been dotted and

          8  t's crossed.  That is not an extreme thing to ask -

          9   -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The problem

         11  is - -

         12                 MS. THAMES: - -  in today's society.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The problem

         14  is you're coming at the last one, this has been

         15  going on for many years.

         16                 MS. THAMES:  No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I know I got

         18  a petition, April 6th the petition is for, and this

         19  is just about to happen.

         20                 MS. THAMES:  Now this is the part,

         21  now this is what shames me.  I have been involved,

         22  and I have not only been involved, I have known

         23  about it for three years, this is the part that

         24  shames me, and I'm glad that most people have gone.

         25  There is proof that the names on those petitions
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          2  were attached to a letter that had a different text

          3  from the text that was eventually attached to the

          4  signatures.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Ma'am, what is

          6  your name?

          7                 MS. THAMES:  My name is Judith Easton

          8  Thames, T- H- A E- S.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Ms. Thames.

         10                 MS. THAMES:  Yes, Sir.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  May I, I think

         12  that this conversation would be more productive if

         13  you together with Ms. Rocker, meet with Mr. Michels

         14  at the, in the Chamber here that is now available.

         15                 MS. THAMES:  Chairman, I want to

         16  thank you for your courtesy to me, and the fact that

         17  I could feel comfortable enough here today.  I

         18  understand it is part of the process, we're all in

         19  here together as Americans.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well I want to

         21  thank you for coming.

         22                 MS. THAMES:  I would like to request

         23  that by all means that you listen to one last

         24  articulate tenant who will also be brief, please?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I shall.
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          2                 MS. THAMES:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Sir, would you

          4  identify yourself, please?

          5                 MR. DOTSON:  Good afternoon, ladies

          6  and gentlemen of the Council, others who have stayed

          7  around to hear these last open comments.  My name is

          8  Heyward Dotson.  I'm a tenant of apartment 11- C, in

          9  644 Riverside Drive.  As of the first of this year,

         10  I'm the elected Chairman of the Tenant Group in 644

         11  Riverside Drive, called the 644 Tenant Group, which

         12  has the largest paid membership of any tenant

         13  organization involved in this process.  And I will

         14  keep my comments brief.

         15                 One, this process was always

         16  fraudulent, whether it started four years ago or two

         17  years ago with Ms. Violeta, a lady who is presumably

         18  the President of this Tenants Association for the

         19  last three years, and I swear to you, I have seen

         20  her have only one, one public meeting over this

         21  issue.

         22                 When asked by Council Member Michels,

         23  how many meetings have we had, which there could

         24  possibly have been tenant involvement over let's say

         25  the last two years?  And correct me if I'm wrong,
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          2  there had been four, three presentations in which

          3  all of the parties gave little introductions and the

          4  30th Precinct was there, and one in our building

          5  last year, where the same thing was done.  It has

          6  never been a situation where we got information in a

          7  timely fashion about any of these matters, it has

          8  never been a situation where tenants, and I won't

          9  even get into the fraudulent petitions, that is

         10  going to be dealt with in another way, but it was

         11  never a situation where tenants sought to give over

         12  control, as we will if we're asking the Councilman

         13  to pass a bill to pull our buildings out of this

         14  program, temporarily, but if he does not, and it

         15  goes through, then the tenants will have seen a

         16  rental property with a poorly performing 7- A, who

         17  has messed with leases and other matters for six and

         18  a half years get away with a holding company,

         19  primarily controlled by banks, along with the

         20  Department of Finance and HPD coming of a "new plan"

         21  to put a new owner in to do something that no one

         22  has been permitted to do with this building for over

         23  25 years, and that is do away with rent control and

         24  rent stabilization.

         25                 Now I have heard all these vague,
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          2  nonspecific, unwritten promises and request made for

          3  cooperation and talking with HPD and consulting with

          4  the Councilman in the back of the room.  But the

          5  fact of the matter is the 7- A has not been

          6  performing, and for the last two years, HPD and the

          7  Department of Finance may, in fact, been sabotaging

          8  the building in order to make it "ready for co-

          9  oping this year."

         10                 But the tenant population, Stanley,

         11  my Councilman mentions this petition, and he says

         12  there are 20 some odd signatures on it.  Well that

         13  petition, we found out most of this information last

         14  Monday night, then Tuesday night they had a big

         15  meeting, and then Wednesday everybody, the Harlem

         16  Tenants Council had a big meeting down at the Harlem

         17  State Office Building, or maybe it was Thursday

         18  night.  And so between Thursday we were told that we

         19  had to have a letter to Stanley by Friday morning,

         20  we had to have a petition to Stanley by Monday, and

         21  so those 20 signatures represents just one, not even

         22  one night of collecting signatures. And I say to

         23  people who say, well, we have these other signatures

         24  that indicate approval, I say to them, that if you

         25  were to give us a week, we would have had over 70
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          2  percent of the people in 644 sign a petition asking

          3  only that our Councilman remove the building from

          4  the program temporarily.

          5                 It is not a situation where we don't

          6  want to go co op.  But it is a situation where we

          7  have close to 40 percent of the tenants in the

          8  building who are on fixed income, rent control or

          9  other types of income limiting situations.  And this

         10  proposal with this bank, who nobody has ever met,

         11  they sent some young guy up to Mount Sinai Hospital

         12  about three weeks ago to tell us what, what is the

         13  name of their group?  Project Restore.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  That is the

         15  Citywide, that is part of the City process.

         16                 MR. DOTSON:  Which is part of the

         17  problem.  As you know, and the Council should know,

         18  there is a lawsuit on the way sponsored by the

         19  Harlem Tenants Council, the CLO, saying that this

         20  whole process under Local Law 37, which was designed

         21  to lead to tenant management and ownership has been

         22  flawed and perhaps is unconstitutional.

         23                 They would not even tell us whether

         24  our building, they said six of the seven buildings

         25  in the Councilman's and Perkins' district were
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          2  involved in the Class Action Lawsuit.  They would

          3  not even tell us if our building is one.  But we

          4  tried to join that lawsuit because of the sentiment

          5  I found, as President, among those people who simply

          6  did not understand anything, and I know that the

          7  people who came to our meetings, and we have had

          8  some very well attended meetings only in 644, we

          9  have not gone to 640 because up until this thing,

         10  the two buildings were separate.  We were a bit

         11  surprised, and I was, at our group's last meeting

         12  when the Vice- President, Ms. Andrian Freedman came

         13  down and said that the tenants association which

         14  presumably helped sign those 80 percent signatures

         15  has not been functioning for more than a year and a

         16  half.

         17                 Now those are facts, whether or not

         18  you want to move and jeopardize the standings of 225

         19  residents at this time with all of these questions

         20  unsettled, with all of these negotiations still to

         21  be made, and with all of these unfulfilled promises

         22  that people are speculating at this public hearing

         23  before your body.

         24                 I would simply say it would be wrong

         25  to impact on so many people in a district where this
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          2  legislation was designed to help.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, Mr.

          5  Dotson, thank you for your testimony.  I, again,

          6  suggest - -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I just want

          8  to put one thing on the record.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I, again,

         10  suggest that you meet with Mr. Michels, who is

         11  eminently fair and responsive, in my opinion that

         12  is, I believe he will give - -

         13                 MR. DOTSON:  I have worked with

         14  Councilman Michels in the past, and it just so

         15  happens that I'm a tenant in this building as well

         16  as a tenant leader, so, you know we have - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: - - every

         18  attention to your concern.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I think you

         20  ought to know because you probably didn't have an

         21  opportunity to see this petition, but this petition

         22  I'm looking at does say the intention of

         23  transferring property to the tenants, that the

         24  tenants are to get this property, that is the whole

         25  purpose of this petition.
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          2                 MR. DOTSON:  I would submit to

          3  Councilman Michels that getting a petition one day

          4  and having people sign indicating they want

          5  homeownership is not quite the same as having signed

          6  on for all of specifics that have occurred with the

          7  partners.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I would like

          9  to sit down with you and explain to you the program.

         10    The program is a very good program, and the

         11  tenants in this building - -

         12                 MR. DOTSON:  We're simply asking that

         13  you, because you are the only who has a voice, give

         14  our building a chance to reconsider this matter, and

         15  since we can put it back in next year.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Mr. Dotson,

         17  the problem is as you stated and I agree with you

         18  that 7- A has not been operating properly, the

         19  building is in very bad shape.

         20                 MR. DOTSON:  Let me just say this,

         21  the building is not abandoned, it is not in bad

         22  shape, - -

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  No, it's in

         24  bad shape in need of repairs.

         25                 MR. DOTSON: - -  an 85 percent of the
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          2  people pay rent on time because this 7- A, if he has

          3  done nothing else, has taken tenants into court the

          4  last three years, there is very few, if any people,

          5  who owe any back rent in these buildings.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Mr. Dotson,

          7  I did not say that.  What I'm saying to you, this

          8  building is in very bad need of repairs, and the

          9  more we delay, the more deterioration these

         10  buildings are going to take.

         11                 MR. DOTSON:  That is an argument, but

         12  it can't be proved by the electrical, only by the

         13  plumping system, not by the electrical, roof and the

         14  elevators, because that was paid for by HPD in 1995

         15  and 1996 about $3 million.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Dotson. Gentlemen, ladies, be no further witnesses

         18  and no other business, this meeting is adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing adjourned at 1:28 p.m.).

         20                 (The following testimony was read

         21  into the record).

         22

         23  Testimony of:

         24  Thomas W. Thompson

         25  Vice- President
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          2  1st Rochdale Cooperative Group, Ltd.

          3

          4                 Good morning.  My name is Thomas W.

          5  Thompson.  I am the Vice- President of Sustainable

          6  Energy for 1st Rochdale Cooperative Group, Ltd.  On

          7  behalf of 1st Rochdale Cooperative Group, Ltd., I am

          8  here today to testify in support for Intro. No. 802.

          9                 1st Rochdale, the nation's first

         10  urban cooperative, was created just over 2 years ago

         11  by leaders of New York City's cooperative housing

         12  community in response to the restructuring of the

         13  electricity industry in New York State.  Today, 1st

         14  Rochdale provides electricity to almost 20,000

         15  businesses and families in over 150 New York City

         16  zip codes.  1st Rochdale is the only ESCO whose

         17  mission is to lower our customers total energy

         18  costs. For New York City's residential customers,

         19  Intro. No. 802 is an important tool for achieving

         20  that goal.

         21                 1st Rochdale is joining with other

         22  cooperative organizations in New York City in

         23  supporting the efforts of J. Reyes- Montblanc and

         24  the HDFC Coalition, Energy Investment Systems and

         25  the New York State Energy Research and Development
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          2  Authority in bringing this important, long needed

          3  initiative to the City Council.

          4                 1st Rochdale is joining with these

          5  organizations to support Intro. 802 for two reasons:

          6                 1.  It will save New York City's

          7  residential electricity customers money, and;

          8                 2.  It will enhance the reliability

          9  of New York City's electric grid during those

         10  critical hours of the year when demand for electric

         11  power is at its peak level.

         12                 Intro. 802 will provide tax abatement

         13  incentives for converting individually metered

         14  cooperative apartments to building wide submetering

         15  systems.  Such metering conversions are an effective

         16  way to reduce the cost of electricity to cooperative

         17  residents and enable cooperatives to participate in

         18  the reduction of peak demand on the electric supply

         19  grid.

         20                 Metering and utility billing for peak

         21  demand offers opportunities for cooperatives to

         22  contribute to and benefit from utility and State

         23  incentive programs designed to curtail electric load

         24  when the commodity is scarce.  When Real Time

         25  Pricing is offered by Con Edison starting May 1,
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          2  2001, Intro. No. 802 will facilitate the

          3  participation of New York City residential

          4  electricity customers and will support public policy

          5  efforts to shift usage to times when power is more

          6  plentiful.

          7                 In this way, Intro. No. 802 will

          8  improve the reliability of New York City's electric

          9  grid.

         10                 As such, these metering conversions

         11  are a pro- active response to the severe dual energy

         12  crisis facing New York City- rising electric prices

         13  and inadequate electric supply.  Low- income

         14  families, the elderly and other fixed income

         15  residents are stressed to the point of having to

         16  choose between electricity and food- many will have

         17  to go without air- conditioning in summer heat

         18  waves.

         19                 The electricity crisis today is

         20  fundamentally different from the oil crises of the

         21  70's and 80's, and addressing it requires unique and

         22  advanced technologies.  These technologies need

         23  promotion, support and leadership from public

         24  institutions that have a stake in solving the

         25  crisis.  With the passage of Intro. No. 802, the
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          2  City Council of New York will serve this leadership

          3  role.

          4                 Conserving electricity use at times

          5  of peak demand and the reduction of electric rates

          6  are part of the same equation. To make that equation

          7  work for customers requires two things:

          8                 1.  Fair rates that enable people to

          9  make voluntary efficiency improvements without

         10  forced sacrifice, and;

         11                 2.  Opportunities to reduce peak

         12  electric consumption to ensure an adequate and

         13  reasonably priced supply for everyone.

         14                 Finally, there should be no concern

         15  that by empowering customers with the "Real Time"

         16  electricity pricing information these meters provide

         17  will lead to increased consumption in J- 51 eligible

         18  apartments in New York City for the following

         19  reasons:

         20                 1.  J- 51 eligible direct- metered

         21  households now pay the highest electric costs of any

         22  city in the nation and deserve a fair chance for

         23  better pricing.

         24                 2.  Electricity consumption is

         25  generally increasing with proliferation of
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          2  electrical devices which should be as available to

          3  people in J- 51 housing as in higher income housing,

          4  and;

          5                 3.  Empowering people with

          6  information about the marginal, peak price for

          7  electricity is a market- oriented approach to

          8  reducing demand and far more effective in helping

          9  control the trend toward increased usage in New York

         10  City dwellings.

         11                 We see such metering conversions as

         12  pre- requisites to the full participation of all of

         13  New York City's housing, be it cooperative, public

         14  and privately owned, in the reduction of escalating

         15  demand and prices for electricity vital to the

         16  health and well- being of low and moderate income

         17  residents.  For all of the above reasons, we urge

         18  the passage of Intro. 802.

         19

         20  Testimony of:

         21  Gregory J. Carlson

         22  Executive Director

         23  Federation of New York Housing Cooperatives

         24

         25                 The Federation of New York Housing
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          2  Cooperatives is a not- for- profit building

          3  membership association.  Our membership covers 650

          4  building consisting of approximately 200,000 units

          5  of cooperative and condominium housing.  Since the

          6  early eighties the Federation has been partnering

          7  with professional engineer Herbert Hirschfeld

          8  through various program of Con Edison and at

          9  present, New York State Energy Research and

         10  Development Authority (NYSERDA), to achieve energy

         11  conservation through education and services.       Over

         12  the years we have spoken to hundreds of cooperatives

         13  and condominium boards and their shareholders and

         14  unit owners.  The buildings that have converted to

         15  submetering have lessen their energy consumption

         16  load by up to 30 percent, surely, it would be in

         17  every mastered metered cooperative or condominium's

         18  interest to submeter their building.  One of the

         19  major barriers keeping these buildings from

         20  converting is the cost to submetering. Although

         21  there are some incentives to reduce the overall cost

         22  of conversion, cost still stands as a major barrier.

         23    The J- 51 program has been instrumental in

         24  preserving the City's housing stock.  We now have an

         25  opportunity to use this wonderful program for our
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          2  looming energy crisis.  For a direct meter building

          3  it is an opportunity to reduce residents costs as

          4  well to better manage their energy consumption.  The

          5  new submetering technology will provide buildings

          6  with more production management tools to reduce

          7  their energy loads.

          8                 Saying the Federation of New York

          9  Housing Cooperatives strongly supports Intro. 802 as

         10  a good beginning. Boards are elected from their

         11  membership, and unfortunately, (like any political

         12  body) sometime succumbs to a vocal minority of their

         13  members.  Boards fearing to upset the apple carts

         14  withdraw their support for submetering.  Until

         15  Government mandates that master meter buildings must

         16  convert to submetering, boards will bow to the

         17  political pressure of the vocal minority of the

         18  membership.  I hope the Council will consider such

         19  measures, especially reading on California's Energy

         20  problem.  Intro. 802 is a good first step- we must

         21  work together to achieve true energy conservation.

         22                 Thank you.

         23

         24  Testimony of:

         25  Jerilyn Perine

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            205

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Commissioner

          3  Housing Preservation and Development

          4

          5                 Dear Council Member Perkins:

          6                 As a result of meeting with you and

          7  the representative from Council Member Michels, I am

          8  writing to clarify that practice of establishing

          9  rents for Manhattan Third Party Transfer (TPT)

         10  buildings and other issues as discussed.

         11                 Establishing Rents During "Interim

         12  Management:" Interim Management is the period of

         13  time between the transfer of a building to a new

         14  owner and the completion of the rehabilitation.

         15  There will be no rent increase during this period.

         16  If a tenant has a lease in place, that lease will

         17  continue for the duration of Interim Management.

         18  Rents in former HDFC Cooperatives will be set equal

         19  to previous maintenance payments.

         20                 Establishing Rents After

         21  Rehabilitation:  After the rehabilitation

         22  construction work is completed, all qualified

         23  tenants will be offered a federal Section 8 rent

         24  voucher.  With the voucher, the tenant pays only 30

         25  percent of their eligible income for rent.  HPD will
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          2  also make a commitment that tenants who are

          3  ineligible for a Section 8 voucher will not pay more

          4  than 30 percent of their income in rent.  Buildings

          5  will continue to be covered under rent stabilization

          6  after rehabilitation.

          7                 32 Saint Nicholas Avenue:  Residents

          8  of this HDFC Cooperative building did not file a

          9  petition for tenant ownership. However, based on our

         10  discussions with you, HPD encourages the tenants to

         11  reconstitute a Tenant Association after the transfer

         12  and to work with the designated non- profit

         13  organization, Ecumenical Community Development

         14  Organization (ECDO), toward forming a new

         15  cooperative capable of owning and operating the

         16  property.  HPD has reached out to ECDO, which is

         17  willing to work with the Tenant Association in

         18  conjunction with Urban Homesteading Assistance Board

         19  toward the formation of a new tenant cooperative.

         20                 127 West 111th Street:  The 125- 135

         21  West 111th Street Tenant Association at this

         22  property filed a tenant petition naming Manhattan

         23  Valley Community Development Corporation (MVDC) as

         24  the Sponsor.  HPD honored the petition by

         25  designating MVDC as the transferee for the property.
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          2    Through our discussions with you, however, HPD

          3  recognizes that the Tenant Association has

          4  subsequently decided on another Sponsor, the

          5  Settlement Housing Fund/Urban Homesteading

          6  Assistance Board (SHF/UHAB) team.  SHF/UHAB is an

          7  approved TPT Qualified Developer under the TPT Round

          8  II Request for qualification.  HPD will update the

          9  Council UDAAP package to recommend SHF/UHAB as the

         10  selected developer for the property.

         11                 Novalex Contracting/West Side

         12  Federation Cluster: This cluster consists of vacant

         13  and occupied brownstones, which have been converted

         14  to SROs as well as two multifamily buildings. The

         15  recommended transferee is a team of a for- profit

         16  organization with home ownership development

         17  experience, Novalex Contracting, and a non- profit

         18  organization with social service and housing

         19  expertise, West Side Federation for Senior Housing

         20  (WSFSH).  Per our discussion, WSFSH will assess

         21  tenants currently residing in these buildings for

         22  their appropriate housing and services needs. All

         23  tenants of properties in the cluster have the right

         24  to return to a legal, renovated unit within the

         25  cluster.  Only after the needs of existing tenants
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          2  needs are accommodated will remaining buildings in

          3  the cluster be redeveloped as home ownership

          4  housing. As with all TPT buildings, HPD commits to

          5  monitoring the assessment and relocation process and

          6  including a regulatory agreement with loan documents

          7  to ensure compliance.  HPD will also share a

          8  Relocation Plan with your office.

          9                 We look forward to working with you

         10  on this very important initiative.

         11                 Sincerely,

         12                 Jerilyn Perine

         13                 Commissioner

         14

         15  Testimony of:

         16  Teresa Total, CPM

         17  First Vice- President

         18  Institute of Real Estate Management

         19

         20                 Dear Mr. Altman:

         21                 I am writing to you on behalf of the

         22  New York Chapter of the Institute of Real Estate

         23  Management (IREM) in response to your letter to Joe

         24  Scholes with regard to Intro. No. 836: An act to

         25  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            209

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  York in relation to the inspection of dwellings to

          3  accommodate individuals and families and recipients

          4  of Section 8 vouchers.

          5                 We will not be able to attend the

          6  hearing on April 11th, however, we are submitting

          7  our comments.

          8                 I am currently the First Vice-

          9  President of the Institute of Real Estate Management

         10  (IREM), as well as Vice President of R. Y.

         11  Management Co., Inc., a property management company

         12  specializing in residential housing.

         13                 The proposed amendment eliminating

         14  the Department's use of housing for tenants with

         15  Section 8 vouchers in developments which have any

         16  outstanding violations (as outlined on the enclosed)

         17  will have a tremendous adverse affect on affordable

         18  housing developments throughout the City.  Most

         19  developments have housing maintenance code

         20  violations on record, regardless if the violations

         21  have been physically cured.  The City of New York

         22  City Department of Housing Preservation and

         23  Development (HPD) has a poor record of removing

         24  violations even when the owner cures the violation

         25  and properly reports the correction.  Also, many
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          2  buildings have violations caused by the tenant (e.g.

          3  Double cylinder locks) that the owner cannot cure

          4  because access is not given by the tenant without a

          5  costly, time- consuming court proceeding.  In

          6  addition, there is no distinction in the proposed

          7  amendment between serious Class C versus minor Class

          8  A and B code violations.

          9                 Affordable housing developments in

         10  the outer boroughs rely heavily on tenants with

         11  Section 8 subsidies to lease units.  This amendment

         12  would make obtaining the approval for a Section 8

         13  lease almost impossible.  This act not only punishes

         14  the owner, but also the Section 8 tenants by

         15  reducing the number of rental apartments available

         16  to them.

         17                 In addition to the question of

         18  violations, Paragraph 2 of the proposed amendment

         19  states that a development which has not been

         20  inspected by the various agencies listed within the

         21  past three years would also be eliminated as a

         22  source of housing for Section 8 voucher tenants.

         23  This is unfair as the landlord has little or no

         24  control over when a development is inspected.  Quite

         25  often an inspection is done only when HPD receives a
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          2  complaint.

          3                 Having worked in the affordable

          4  housing management field for eighteen years, I can

          5  state from experience that if this amendment is

          6  passed, the City's privately owned affordable

          7  housing developments will be placed in serious

          8  financial jeopardy and vacancy levels will rise

          9  together with having many tenants approved for

         10  Section 8 assistance unable to find housing.  It is

         11  therefore important that this amendment not be

         12  approved in its current form.

         13                 Thank you for allowing IREM this

         14  opportunity to respond.

         15                 Sincerely,

         16                 Teresa Total, CPM

         17                 First Vice- President

         18

         19  Testimony by:

         20  Jonathan Gaska

         21  District Manager

         22  Community Board #14

         23

         24                 The Section 8 Program/EARP and the

         25  City of New York has put the communities of Far
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          2  Rockaway, Arverne, Edgemere, Rockaway Beach and

          3  Rockaway Park on the edge of ruin.

          4                 Over the last decade real estate

          5  investors have found that buying homes in Rockaway,

          6  accepting EARP clients and large City bonuses were

          7  an easy way to make big money.  These absentee

          8  landlords would buy cheap properties hired

          9  unlicensed contractors and illegally add apartments

         10  or rooms.  These investors would fill these

         11  dangerous homes with EARP clients many who have

         12  problem other than being homeless.  Shortly after

         13  the tenants move in they call our office to complain

         14  about the dangerous conditions they are not living

         15  in.

         16                 The City has placed mothers and

         17  children in dangerous illegal attic and basement

         18  apartments.  Falling ceilings, leaking roofs and

         19  faulty plumbing are all too common in these Section

         20  8 apartments/rooms.

         21                 The only group of people that have

         22  benefited from the EARP program have been the

         23  property owners who continue to place people in

         24  substandard housing unfettered by compliance to any

         25  real standards.
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          2                 The passing of Intro. #836 will be a

          3  positive step in providing safe housing for people

          4  in need as well as maintaining the quality of this

          5  Borough's housing stock.

          6                 We urge you to support this bill.

          7

          8  Testimony of:

          9  Ann Rocker

         10  640/644 Riverside Drive

         11

         12                 Question from 640/644 Riverside Drive

         13  tenants:

         14                 A)  Whether the City of New York's

         15  Department of Housing Preservation and Development

         16  (HPD) had included a proviso that will obligate

         17  Neighborhood Restored (the owner of the Transfer

         18  Area) and its affiliates to the following

         19  conditions: 1) to train tenants to become homeowners

         20  and 2) to limit the reconveyance of the Transfer

         21  Area (640/644 Riverside Drive buildings) to all

         22  current tenants for homeownership and building

         23  ownership (the co op)?

         24                 B)  Whether the four entities of

         25  Neighborhood Restore are currently an experienced
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          2   "housing development fund company? (Article XI Tax

          3  Exemption)?

          4                 C)  Whether HPD has sent a resolution

          5  to the City Council to have the 640/644 Riverside

          6  Drive Tenant Association trained to become a housing

          7  development fund company, so that we can remain

          8  under the Article XI Tax Exemption?

          9                 D)  Whether HPD has currently quiet

         10  the title (obtained a court ordered title) of the

         11  640 and 644 Riverside Drive against the interest of

         12  Hilly Realty Corporation (Hilly), so that Hilly

         13  cannot redeem the property from the interest of all

         14  others?

         15                 E)  Whether HPD has made provisions

         16  to maintain rent control and rent stabilization on

         17  pertinent apartments, so that long time tenants on

         18  fixed- incomes can remain in housing?

         19                 F)  How can all tenants obtain a copy

         20  of the HPD- Neighborhood Restore Agreement regarding

         21  the buildings (640 and 644 Riverside Drive) that was

         22  submitted to the City Council, because in fact the

         23  tenants are unaware of the actual terms of this

         24  document as yet?

         25                 H)  Provided that the tenant's City
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          2  Councilperson does not withdraw the building from

          3  the Third Party Transfer Program, for current

          4  tenants who are not in favor of this particular

          5  Program what is the next step in order to maintain

          6  our apartments?

          7                 I)  Who and how will the following be

          8  accomplished: 1) payment of the four affiliates

          9  working with Neighborhood Restore without increasing

         10  rents of the tenants and 2) accessing hidden cost

         11  that may drastically effect rents, such as paying

         12  the mortgagees whom the landlord borrowed money

         13  from, (monies of which has not been used to renovate

         14  640/644 Riverside Drive)?

         15                 J)  Whether the homeownership of the

         16  co- op apartment can be freely transferable (sold)

         17  and descendible (willed to heirs or others) by the

         18  homeowner, as in the way that "true homeownership"

         19  (fee simple) generally allows?  If not, what

         20  limitations are placed on these homeownership rights

         21  (and why)?

         22                 K)  Why has HPD given (sole)

         23  authorization to a company, named J. E. Roberts, to

         24  purchase a tax lien on the Transfer Area (640/644

         25  Riverside Drive) for the New York City Tax Lien Sale
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          2  on May 31, 2001, thereby allowing Hilly's back taxes

          3  interests to become satisfied for HPD's purpose and

          4  allowing Hilly, (the original, unscrupulous

          5  landlords during the past twenty years) to remain as

          6  the true and legal owner of the properties (640/644

          7  Riverside Drive)?

          8                 On April 25th, New York City Council

          9  is scheduled to vote on a Third Party Transfer of

         10  buildings 640/644 Riverside Drive.  On May 31, 2001,

         11  a company named J.E. Roberts is of record the sole

         12  agent under consideration by HPD to purchase the New

         13  York City Tax Lien, thereby satisfying the tax

         14  obligations between Hilly Realty Corporation

         15  ("Hilly") and HPD.  This initiative leaves Hilly as

         16  the sole owner of these buildings.

         17                 Provided that the City Council votes

         18  affirmatively for the Third Party Transfer, Hilly by

         19  maintaining ownership will be clear to continue its

         20  ownership of the buildings without a tax requirement

         21  from HPD.  This situation will play directly into

         22  the hands of this "slumlord" when upon purchase of

         23  these buildings, subsequently obtaining bank loans

         24  and mortgages for renovations that are yet to take

         25  place by Hilly Realty.
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          2                 Many of the tenants are poor (and

          3  uneducated as homeowners) and are living on fixed

          4  income, thereby in need of rent control to remain in

          5  affordable housing.  This was the purpose of rent

          6  control as it was originally proposed.

          7                 This Third Party Transfer has pledged

          8  to remove these rent control and rent regulations

          9  off of these properties, coming into our homes

         10  accessing all occupants and charging 30 percent of

         11  each person's total income.

         12                 There are 230 apartments in these two

         13  buildings, 30 percent to the total income could make

         14  the current tenant's homeless and Hilly Realty very

         15  rich.  Also, HPD would be out of the picture with

         16  respect to a potential foreclosure, thereby leaving

         17  the tenants as the only ones to take a fall.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 11th day of April 2001.

         19
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         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT WTULICH
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